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PART 1 – FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements.
ONE STOP SYSTEMS, INC. (OSS)
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Unaudited
March 31,
2020

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Deposits and other
Deferred tax assets, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net

$

$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Current portion of notes payable, net of debt discount of $7,019 and
$7,019, respectively (Note 8)
Current portion of related-party notes payable, net of debt discount
of $23,060 and $23,060, respectively (Note 8)
Total current liabilities
Notes payable, net of current portion and debt discount of $292 and $2,047,
respectively (Note 8)
Related-party notes payable, net of current portion and debt discount
of $961 and $6,726 , respectively (Note 8)
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 10 and 11)
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, $.0001 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized;
16,476,661 and 16,121,747 shares issued and outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Noncontrolling interest
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity

$

$
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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December 31,
2019

3,038,006
9,111,679
8,984,877
840,525
21,975,087
3,552,551
45,133
3,459,972
7,120,510
1,171,667
37,324,920

$

3,833,791
4,610,506

$

$

5,185,321
11,667,157
7,369,356
453,938
24,675,772
3,568,564
47,146
3,019,823
7,120,510
1,346,192
39,778,007

4,115,977
4,607,432

1,016,814

1,377,751

575,422
10,036,533

561,441
10,662,601

15,722

149,301

50,686
10,102,941

199,943
11,011,845

1,647
30,144,896
(73,340 )
(2,851,224 )
27,221,979
37,324,920

1,612
30,537,015
500
(17,773 )
(1,755,192 )
28,766,162
39,778,007

$

ONE STOP SYSTEMS, INC. (OSS)
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Three Months Ended March 31,
2020
2019

Revenue
Cost of revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
General and administrative
Marketing and selling
Research and development
Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Other income (expense), net
Total other income (expense), net
Loss before income taxes
Benefit for income taxes
Net loss attributable to common stockholders

$

Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

13,359,637
9,963,950
3,395,687

4

10,057,899
7,646,277
2,411,622

2,514,065
1,189,351
1,203,425
4,906,841
(1,511,154 )

2,043,934
1,137,932
1,261,964
4,443,830
(2,032,208 )

$

24,637
(68,784 )
(8,029 )
(52,176 )
(1,563,330 )
(467,298 )
(1,096,032 )

$

3,107
(6,268 )
(11,271 )
(14,432 )
(2,046,640 )
(1,101,911 )
(944,729 )

$
$

(0.07 )
(0.07 )

$
$

(0.07 )
(0.07 )

16,332,898
16,332,898

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

$

14,239,711
14,239,711

ONE STOP SYSTEMS, INC. (OSS)
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
For the Three Months Ended March 31,
2020
2019

Net loss attributable to common stockholders
Other comprehensive loss:
Currency translation adjustment
Total other comprehensive loss
Comprehensive loss

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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$

(1,096,032 )

$

(55,567 )
(55,567 )
(1,151,599 )

$

(944,729 )

$

(41,869 )
(41,869 )
(986,598 )

ONE STOP SYSTEMS, INC. (OSS)
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For The Three Months Ended March 31, 2020
Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
loss

Common Stock
Shares

Balance, January 1, 2020
Stock-based compensation
Exercise of stock options, RSU's and Warrants
Return of capital upon dissolution of SkyScale
Taxes paid on net issuance of employee stock options
Currency translation adjustment
Net loss
Balance, March 31, 2020

16,121,747
354,914
16,476,661

Additional
Paid-in-Capital

Amount

$

$

1,612
35
1,647

$

30,537,015
207,761
56,965

Noncontrolling
Interest

$

(656,845 )
30,144,896 $

$

500 $
(500 )
-

(17,773 ) $
-

(1,755,192 ) $
-

(55,567 )

-

(73,340 ) $

(1,096,032 )
(2,851,224 ) $

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Accumulated
Deficit

$

Total
Stockholders'
Equity

28,766,162
207,761
57,000
(500 )
(656,845 )
(55,567 )
(1,096,032 )
27,221,979

ONE STOP SYSTEMS, INC. (OSS)
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For The Three Months Ended March 31, 2019
Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (loss)

Common Stock
Shares

Balance, January 1, 2019
Stock-based compensation
Exercise of stock options, RSU's and Warrants
Currency translation adjustment
Net loss
Balance, March 31, 2019

14,216,328
54,098
14,270,426

Additional
Paid-in-Capital

Amount

$

$

1,422
5
1,427

$

27,424,113
167,474
14,196
27,605,783

$

Noncontrolling
Interest

$

$

500
500

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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$

$

1,142

Accumulated
Deficit

$

(41,869 )
(40,727 ) $

(854,855 ) $
(944,729 )
(1,799,584 ) $

Total
Stockholders'
Equity

26,572,322
167,474
14,201
(41,869 )
(944,729 )
25,767,399

ONE STOP SYSTEMS, INC. (OSS)
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Three Months Ended March 31,
2020
2019

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss attributable to common stockholders
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Deferred benefit for income taxes
(Gain) on disposal of property and equipment
Provision for bad debt
Warranty reserves
Amortization of deferred gain
Amortization of intangibles
Depreciation
Inventory reserves
Amortization of debt discount
Stock-based compensation expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities

$

(1,096,032 )

$

(944,729 )

(441,282 )
(1,542 )
(2,405 )
5,075
(41,479 )
174,525
221,300
148,418
7,520
207,761

(1,165,219 )
(1,050 )
(88 )
(3,428 )
(16,479 )
349,419
115,308
57,046
167,474

2,530,072
(1,826,564 )
(386,005 )
(275,428 )
54,293
(721,773 )

1,868,297
(2,699,867 )
(185,596 )
1,467,746
791,149
(200,017 )

(200,049 )
1,542
(198,507 )

(803,243 )
1,050
(802,193 )

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of stock and stock options exercised
Payment of payroll taxes on net issuance of employee stock options
Net (repayment) borrowings on bank lines of credit
Net repayments on related-party notes payable
Net repayments on notes payable
Net cash used in financing activities

57,000
(656,845 )
(430,313 )
(141,042 )
(42,919 )
(1,214,119 )

14,201
140,967
(972,440 )
(817,272 )

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rates on cash
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

(2,134,399 )
(12,916 )
5,185,321
3,038,006

(1,819,482 )
2,660
2,272,256
455,434

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment, including capitalization of labor
costs for test equipment and ERP
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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$

ONE STOP SYSTEMS, INC. (OSS)
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED
For the Three Months Ended March 31,
2020
2019

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for interest
Cash paid during the period for income taxes

$
$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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22,369
-

$
$

6,268
62,349

ONE STOP SYSTEMS, INC. (OSS)
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Three Months Ended March 31, 2020 and 2019
NOTE 1 – THE COMPANY AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Nature of Operations
One Stop Systems, Inc. (“we,” “our,” “OSS,” or the “Company”) was originally incorporated as a California corporation in 1999 after initially being formed as a
California limited liability company in 1998. On December 14, 2017, the Company was reincorporated as a Delaware corporation in connection with its initial public
offering. The Company designs, manufactures and markets industrial grade computer systems and components that are based on industry standard computer architectures. The
Company markets its products to manufacturers of automated equipment used for entertainment, telecommunications, industrial and military applications.
During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company formed a new wholly-owned subsidiary in Germany (“OSS GmbH”). During July 2016, the Company
acquired Mission Technologies Group, Inc. (“Magma”) and its operations.
In April 2017, the Company and a related entity formed a joint venture named SkyScale, LLC in the State of California (“SkyScale”). In accordance with the
Contribution Agreement, each member contributed $750,000 and received a 50% interest in the joint venture. The purpose of SkyScale was to engage in the business of
providing high performance computing capabilities as cloud services. As a result of changes in the competitive landscape and downward pressure on pricing from large
competitors, the members to the SkyScale joint venture agreement agreed to dissolve SkyScale and ceased operations as of December 31, 2018.
In May 2017, the Company entered into a Technology and Software License Agreement with Western Digital (“WDT”) for their Ion flash storage software. The
agreement provides the Company with the Ion source code and rights to develop and market derivative products. The Company intends to develop and sell Ion flash storage
software with its high-density storage arrays, as well as service existing WDT software users.
In July 2017, the Company entered in to a Service Agreement with WDT to service its existing customer base that utilizes Ion flash storage software. The Company
also purchased certain equipment from WDT and hired selected employees to assist in the servicing of these existing customers. Management has determined that the activities
and assets acquired from WDT comprise a business as defined in ASC 805-10-55-4 through 55. Consideration paid by the Company to WDT pursuant to the arrangements
described above was $67,000. In addition, the Company is required to pay prospective royalties to WDT of $2,500 or $5,000 for each sale of the Company’s products that
include licensed software. WDT is obligated to pay the Company for services rendered to support existing WDT software users the amount of $1,400,000 in defined declining
quarterly amounts over a three year period. Management does not believe this business acquisition meets the significance definition provided in Regulation S-X, Rule 210.102(w).
On August 31, 2018, the Company acquired Concept Development Inc. (CDI) located in Irvine, California for cash of $646,759, and common stock valued at
$4,194,673 (Note 3). CDI specializes in the design and manufacture of custom high-performance computing systems for airborne in-flight entertainment systems.
On October 31, 2018, the Company’s wholly-owned German subsidiary, OSS GmbH, acquired 100% of the outstanding stock of Bressner Technology GmbH, a
Germany limited liability company located near Munich, Germany, from its principal owners for cash consideration of €4,725,000 (US$5,374,582) and stock consideration of
106,463 newly-issued restricted shares of the Company’s common stock.
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Liquidity and Going Concern Considerations
Given our recent operating losses, the Company’s primary sources of liquidity have been provided by (i) the Company’s February 2018 initial public offering (net
proceeds were approximately $16,100,000), (ii) March 2019 notes payable from members of the Board of Directors and others of $1,500,000, (iii) the July 2019 sale of
1,554,832 shares of the Company’s common stock for net cash proceeds of $2,488,148 and (iv) the April 24, 2020 sale of $3,000,000 of Senior Secured Convertible Promissory
Notes issued at a 10% original issue discount.
As of March 31, 2020, the Company’s cash and cash equivalents were $3,038,006 and working capital was $11,938,554. Cash and cash equivalents held by Bressner
totaled $599,511 (USD) at March 31, 2020, and Bressner’s debt covenants do not permit the use of those funds by its parent company. During the three months ended March
31, 2020, the Company experienced an operating loss of $1,511,154, with cash used in operating activities of $721,773. Our largest customer, engaged in the media and
entertainment industry, is having significant financial hardships attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic and as a result has been slow in paying its outstanding accounts
receivables. The Company has formulated a plan whereby extended terms have been made available, and our customer is presently honoring those terms.
The Company’s revenue growth, inclusive of two acquisitions made in 2018, has resulted in growth of the Company as a whole, but has been offset by increased
spending in all areas of operating expenses: general and administrative, marketing and selling, and research and development.
The recent outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus, or COVID-19, which has been declared by the World Health Organization to be a “public health emergency of
international concern,” has spread across the globe and is impacting worldwide economic activity. A public health pandemic, including COVID-19, poses the risk that we or our
employees, contractors, suppliers, and other partners may be prevented from conducting business activities for an indefinite period of time, including due to shutdowns that may
be requested or mandated by governmental authorities. While it is not possible at this time to estimate the impact that COVID-19 could have on our business, the continued
spread of COVID-19 and the measures taken by the governments of countries affected could disrupt the supply chain and adversely impact our business, financial condition or
results of operations. The COVID-19 outbreak and mitigation measures may also have an adverse impact on global economic conditions which could have an adverse effect on
our business and financial condition. The extent to which the COVID-19 outbreak impacts our results will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot
be predicted, including new information that may emerge concerning the severity of the virus and the actions to contain its impact.
Though management has been successfully managing through the current known impacts, if the situation further deteriorates or the outbreak results in further
restriction on both supply and demand factors, our cash flows, financial position and operating results for fiscal year 2020 and beyond will be negatively impacted. Neither the
length of time nor the magnitude of the negative impacts can be presently determined.
Management’s plans with respect to the above is to continue its efforts to restructure the Company with the primary objectives of reducing costs, conserving cash,
strengthening margins, and improving company-wide execution. Specific actions already implemented by management include the deferral of certain executive and Board
compensation payments, a freeze on hiring and minimizing overtime, travel and entertainment, and contractor costs. On April 7, 2020, the Company implemented a cost
reduction plan which included the termination of certain employees and elimination of certain costs. Estimated savings from this effort are estimated to be $2.5 to $3.0 million
for the year ending 2020.
While management expects these actions to result in prospective cost reductions, management is also committed to securing debt and/or equity financing to ensure that
liquidity will be sufficient to meet the Company’s cash requirements through at least a period of the next twelve months. Management believes potential sources of liquidity
include at least the following:
▪

In March 2019, the Company received funding commitments in the amount of $4,000,000 from members of the Board of Directors, of which $1,500,000
has been drawn through December 31, 2019, of which $786,125 remains outstanding. Management expects that $500,000 of such remaining commitments
is available to the Company.
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▪

In May 2019, the Company filed a Form S-3 prospectus with the Securities and Exchange Commission which became effective on June 19, 2019, and
allows the Company to offer up to $100,000,000 aggregate dollar amount of shares of its common stock, preferred stock, debt securities, warrants to
purchase its common stock, preferred stock or debt securities, subscription rights to purchase its common stock, preferred stock or debt securities and\or
units consisting of some or all of these securities, in any combination, together or separately, in one of more offerings, in amounts, at prices and on the terms
that the Company will determine at the time of the offering and which will be set forth in a prospectus supplement and any related free writing prospectus.

▪

On April 24, 2020, the Company completed a $6.0 million debt financing on a non-interest bearing convertible note with a 10% original issue
discount. The first tranche of $3.0 million was received April 27, 2020, with an additional $3.0 million available seven months from the date of closing at
the option of the Company conditioned upon meeting certain requirements. The note is repayable in twenty-two installments beginning three months after
closing.

▪

On April 28, 2020, the Company received a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan in the amount of $1,500,000.

As a result of management’s cost reduction plans, the Company’s potential sources of liquidity and management’s most recent cash flow forecasts, management
believes that the Company has sufficient liquidity to satisfy its anticipated cash requirements for at least the next twelve months. However, there can be no assurance that
management’s cost reduction efforts will be effective, the forecasted cash flows will be achieved, or that external sources of financing, including the issuance of debt and/or
equity securities, will be available at times and on terms acceptable to the Company, or at all.
Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting in accordance with United States Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (“U.S. GAAP”), as set forth in the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”).
The unaudited consolidated financial statements herein have been prepared by the Company pursuant to the rules and regulations of the United States Securities
Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The accompanying interim unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the presumption that users of the interim
financial information have either read or have access to the audited consolidated financial statements for the latest year ended December 31, 2019. Accordingly, note
disclosures which would substantially duplicate the disclosures contained in the December 31, 2019 audited consolidated financial statements have been omitted from these
interim unaudited consolidated financial statements. The Company evaluated all subsequent events and transactions through the date of filing this report.
Certain information and note disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant
to such rules and regulations. In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. Operating results for the three
months ended March 31, 2020, are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2020. For further information, refer to the
audited consolidated financial statements and notes for the year ended December 31, 2019 included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on
March 26, 2020.
Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of OSS, which include the results from the Magma acquisition, Ion business
combination, and acquisition of Concept Development Inc., since their respective dates of acquisition, its wholly-owned subsidiary, OSS GmbH, which includes the acquisition
of Bressner Technology GmbH, and the accounts of the joint venture, SkyScale LLC, which was approved for dissolution on December 31, 2018 (collectively referred to as the
“Company”). Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
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NOTE 2 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and disclosures of contingent assets, liabilities, and expenses at
the date of the consolidated financial statements during the reporting period.
Significant estimates made by management include, among others, the fair value of acquired net assets of CDI in August 2018 with reevaluation in April 2019, and
Bressner Technology GmbH in October 2018, the allowance for doubtful accounts, fair value of stock options, recoverability of inventories and long-lived assets, and
realizability of deferred tax assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Concentration Risks
At times, deposits held with financial institutions may exceed the amount of insurance provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), which
provides basic deposit coverage with limits up to $250,000 per owner. As of March 31, 2020, the Company had $2,169,502 in excess of the insurance limits. The Company
has not experienced any such losses in these accounts. In Germany, the deposit insurance is €100,000 per bank, per customer. As of March 31, 2020, Bressner has €443,844
(US$489,275) on deposit with banks in excess of the insurance limits.
In the three month periods ended March 31, 2020, and 2019, the Company has one customer which represented greater than 10% of the Company’s
revenue. Collectively, this customer represented approximately 27%, and 26% of revenue, respectively. As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, one customer
accounted for 59% and 45% of net trade accounts receivables, respectively.
The Company made purchases from certain suppliers of which each supplier was greater than 10% of the Company’s total vendor purchases on an annual
basis. Collectively these vendors represented approximately 17% and 30% of purchases for the three month periods ended March 31, 2020, and 2019, respectively.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on deposit and money market accounts. The Company considers all highly liquid temporary cash investments with an initial
maturity of 90 days or less when acquired to be cash equivalents. Management believes that the carrying amounts of cash equivalents approximate their fair value because of
the short maturity period.
Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are presented at net realizable value. This value includes an appropriate allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts to reflect any loss
anticipated on the trade accounts receivable and unbilled receivables. Unbilled receivables include costs and gross profit earned in excess of billings. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is an estimate to cover the losses resulting from the inability of customers to make payments on their outstanding balances and unbilled receivables. In
estimating the required allowance, management considers the overall quality and aging of the accounts receivable, specific customer circumstances, current economic trends,
and historical experience with collections. At March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the allowance for doubtful accounts was $11,518, and $14,000, respectively.
Revenues earned in excess of related billings are recorded as an asset on the balance sheet as unbilled receivables. Unbilled receivables as of March 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019, were $214 and $25,432, respectively.
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Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The Company uses the average cost method for purposes of determining cost, which approximates
the first-in, first-out method.
The Company establishes reserves on its inventories to write-down the carrying value of its estimated obsolete or excess inventories to estimated net realizable value
based upon observations of historical usage and assumptions about future demand and market conditions. In addition, the Company considers changes in the market value of
components in determining the net realizable value of its inventory. Inventory reserves are not typically reversed until the specific inventories are sold or otherwise disposed.
Actual demand, product mix and alternative usage may be lower than those that we project and this difference could have a material adverse effect on our gross
margin if inventory write-downs beyond those initially recorded become necessary. Alternatively, if actual demand, product mix and alternative usage are more favorable than
those we estimated at the time of such a write-down, our gross margin could be favorably impacted in future periods.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, generally from three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are recorded at cost and are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the remaining
lease term or the estimated useful life of the related asset. Tooling and test equipment includes capitalized labor costs associated with the development of the related tooling and
test equipment. Costs incurred for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred, and expenditures for major replacements and improvements are capitalized. Upon
retirement or sale, the cost and related accumulated depreciation and amortization of disposed assets are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in
other income (expense), net.
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired in business combinations. Goodwill is not amortized but is tested
for impairment at least annually or when we deem that a triggering event has occurred. The Company reviews goodwill for impairment annually on December 31. The
Company completed its annual assessment for goodwill impairment and determined that goodwill is not impaired as of December 31, 2019 and no adjustment was required.
In April 2019, the Company performed an impairment test of goodwill, as a result of a short-fall in the actual overall financial performance of CDI as compared to
plan, a recurring need for working capital, and a decrease in the Company’s stock price. As a result of this interim evaluation, the Company recorded an impairment loss to
goodwill of $1,697,394, which was charged to operating expenses during the second quarter of 2019.
Intangible Assets and Long-lived Assets
We evaluate our intangible and long-lived assets for impairment when events or circumstances arise that indicate our intangible and long-lived assets may be
impaired. Indicators of impairment include, but are not limited to, a significant deterioration in overall economic conditions, a decline in our market capitalization, the loss of
significant business, significant decreases in funding for our contracts, or other significant adverse changes in industry or market conditions. The Company completed its
qualitative assessment for impairment in December 2019 and determined that there was no impairment as of December 31, 2019. There were no events or circumstances that
arose during the three month period ended March 31, 2020, that gave an indication of impairment. There can be no assurance, however, that market conditions will not change
or demand for the Company’s products will continue, which could result in an impairment of intangible and long-lived assets in the future.
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Fair Value Measurements
The Company uses a three-tier fair value hierarchy to classify and disclose all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, as well as assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis, in periods subsequent to their initial measurement. These tiers include:
•

Level 1, defined as quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

•

Level 2, defined as inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted
prices in markets that are not active, model-based valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market, or other inputs
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities; and

•

Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

The carrying value of financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued expenses, lines of credit, and
other liabilities approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments. Assets and liabilities assumed in the acquisition of the Ion software, Concept
Development Inc., and Bressner Technology GmbH were recorded at fair value based upon the Company’s market assumptions which approximated carrying value (except for
acquired intangible assets – Note 3) due to the short-term nature of the instruments. The carrying amounts of the Company’s notes payable and Bressner’s existing lines of
credit and notes payable approximate their fair values at the stated interest rates and are reflective of the prevailing market rates.
Revenue Recognition
On January 1, 2019, the Company adopted the new accounting standard update ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which superseded nearly all
existing revenue recognition guidance under GAAP, to all contracts using the modified retrospective method. The comparative information has not been restated and continues
to be reported under the accounting standards in effect for those periods.
The Company’s performance obligations are satisfied over time as work is performed or at a point in time. The majority of the Company’s revenue is recognized at a
point in time when products ship and control is transferred to the customer. The Company determines revenue recognition through the following steps: (1) identification of the
contract with a customer; (2) identification of the performance obligations in the contract; (3) determination of the transaction price; (4) allocation of the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract; and (5) recognition of revenue when, or as, a performance obligation is satisfied.
The Company’s contracts are executed through a combination of written agreements along with purchase orders with all customers including certain general terms and
conditions. Generally, purchase orders entail products, quantities and prices, which define the performance obligations of each party and are approved and accepted by the
Company. The Company’s contracts with customers do not include extended payment terms. Payment terms vary by contract type and type of customer and generally range
from 30 to 60 days from invoice. Additionally, taxes assessed by a governmental authority that are both imposed on and concurrent with a specific revenue-producing
transaction, that are collected by the Company from a customer and deposited with the relevant government authority, are excluded from revenue.
The transaction price is determined based on the consideration to which the Company will be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to the customer
adjusted for estimated variable consideration, if any. Variable consideration may include discounts, rights of return, refunds, and other similar obligations. The Company
allocates the transaction price to each distinct product and service based on its relative standalone selling price. The standalone selling price for products primarily involves the
cost to produce the deliverable plus the anticipated margin and for services is estimated based on the Company’s approved list price.
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In the normal course of business, the Company does not accept product returns unless the items are defective as manufactured. The Company establishes provisions for
estimated returns and warranties. In addition, the Company does not typically provide customers with the right to a refund and does not transact for noncash consideration.
Customer agreements include one vendor managed inventory program. The Company recognizes revenue under this arrangement when all of the following criteria are
met: (i) the goods have been identified separately as belonging to the customer; (ii) the goods are ready for physical shipment to the customer; (iii) the Company does not have
the ability to direct the goods to another customer; and (iv) the arrangement was requested by the customer and that the customer has sufficiently explained a substantial
business purpose for the arrangement. Management also considers whether the customer's custodial risks are insured and whether modifications to the Company's normal
billing and credit terms were required.
The Company recorded revenue from product sales that are held in vendor managed inventory under these agreements of $3,179,943 and $1,494,078 during the three
month periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, $1,329,057 and $459,893, respectively, of product sold through
those dates were held by the Company in the vendor management program.
Revenues on certain fixed-price contracts where we provide engineering services, prototypes and completed products are recognized based upon percentage of
completion or based upon milestones delivered that are provided during the period and compared to milestone goals to be provided over the entire contract. These services
require that we perform significant, extensive and complex design, development, modification or implementation of our customers’ systems. Performance will often extend over
long periods of time, and our right to receive future payment depends on our future performance in accordance with the agreement.
The percentage-of-completion methodology involves recognizing probable and reasonably estimable revenue using the percentage of services completed, on a current
cumulative cost to estimated total cost basis, using a reasonably consistent profit margin over the performance period. Due to the long-term nature of these projects, developing
the estimates of costs often requires significant judgment. Factors that must be considered in estimating the progress of work completed and ultimate cost of the projects
include, but are not limited to, the availability of labor and labor productivity, the nature and complexity of the work to be performed and the impact of delayed performance. If
changes occur in delivery, productivity or other factors used in developing the estimates of costs or revenues, we revise our cost and revenue estimates, which may result in
increases or decreases in revenues and costs, and such revisions are reflected in earnings in the period in which the revision becomes known.
During the three month periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, revenue recognized on a fixed price contractual basis was $73,750 and $43,071, respectively.
The Company recognizes contract assets or unbilled receivables related to revenue recognized for services completed but not yet invoiced to the clients. Unbilled
receivables are recorded as accounts receivable when the Company has an unconditional right to contract consideration. A contract liability is recognized as deferred revenue
when the Company invoices clients in advance of performing the related services under the terms of a contract. Deferred revenue is recognized as revenue when the Company
has satisfied the related performance obligation.
On certain contracts with several of the Company’s significant customers, the Company receives payments in advance of manufacturing. Advanced payments are
recorded as deferred revenue until the revenue recognition criteria described above has been met.
Related billings that are in excess of revenue earned are deferred and recorded as a liability on the consolidated balance sheet until the related services are provided.
Deferred revenue was $12,359 and $24,718 as of March 31, 2020 and December 31 2019, respectively.
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Remaining performance obligations represent the amount of revenue from fixed-fee contracts. As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, approximately $0,
attributable to cancellation of a contract, and $317,718, respectively of revenue from fixed-fee contracts that is expected to be recognized from these remaining performance
obligations. We elected to utilize the practical expedient exemption to exclude from this disclosure the amount of revenue from contracts which are not fixed-fee and where we
do not have the right to invoice until the services have been performed.
The Company’s operating segment revenues disaggregated by primary geographic market, which is determined based on a customer’s geographic location, for the
three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

Entity:

Domestic

Customized computers and flash
arrays
In-flight entertainment &
connectivity
Value-added reseller with
minimal customization

$

For The Three Month Period
Ended March 31, 2020
International

6,207,898

$

529,406

$

6,737,304

1,610,380

$

92,540

$

4,919,413
6,622,333

Total

7,818,278

Domestic

$

621,946

$

4,919,413
13,359,637

For The Three Month Period
Ended March 31, 2019
International

2,042,510

$

296,529

$

2,339,039

3,187,576

$

2,925

$

4,528,359
7,718,860

Total

5,230,086
299,454

$

4,528,359
10,057,899

Warranty Reserves
The Company offers product warranties that extend for one year from the date of sale. Such warranties are considered assurance-type warranties and therefore, they
would not be deemed to be a separate performance obligation under ASC 606. Such warranties require the Company to repair or replace defective product returned to the
Company during the warranty period at no cost to the customer. The Company records an estimate for warranty‑related costs at the time of sale based on its historical and
estimated future product return rates and expected repair or replacement costs (Note 7).
While such costs have historically been within management’s expectations and the provisions established, unexpected changes in failure rates could have a material
adverse impact on the Company, requiring additional warranty reserves and could adversely affect the Company’s gross profit and gross margins.
The Company offers customers extended warranties beyond the standard one-year warranty on the product. The extended warranties are considered service-type
warranties and would be considered as a separate performance obligation under ASC 606. The Company is the primary obligor and, revenue is recognized on a gross basis
ratably over the term of the extended warranty. The customer can purchase extended warranties from one to five years, in the bronze, silver or gold categories. This entails
hardware repair or replacement, shipping methods on how the warranties will be returned / delivered, response times and hours of operations to receive support. The amount of
warranties sold for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 were $92,724 and $80,123, respectively.
The revenue that was recognized for the warranties sold for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 were $69,105 and $106,698, respectively. The Company
does have recourse with some of its suppliers that offer more than a one-year guarantee on parts, but this is not standard. The few that offer greater than a year warranty, the
Company may be able to cover the cost of the part from the manufacturer for the failed part. The amounts of these costs vary in a wide range, but are not material, due to the
infrequency of failure. As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, deferred revenue totaled $388,378 and $394,571, respectively. The Company expects to recognize
$388,378 of unearned revenue amounts from 2020 through 2024.
Shipping and Handling Costs
The Company's shipping and handling costs are included in cost of goods sold for all periods presented.
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Foreign Currency
We operate primarily in the United States. Foreign sales of products and services are primarily denominated in U.S. dollars. We also conduct business outside the
United States through our foreign subsidiary in Germany, where business is largely transacted in non-U.S. dollar currencies, particularly the Euro, which is subject to
fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Accordingly, we are subject to exposure from changes in the exchange rates of local currencies. Foreign
currency transaction gains and losses are recorded in other income (expense), net in the consolidated statements of operations.
OSS GmbH operates as an extension of OSS’ domestic operations. The functional currency of OSS GmbH is the Euro. Transactions denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency are remeasured to the functional currency at the average exchange rate in effect during the period. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
assets and liabilities are remeasured using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are remeasured at historical exchange rates.
Consequently, changes in the exchange rates of the currencies may impact the translation of the foreign subsidiaries’ statements of operations into U.S. dollars, which may in
turn affect our consolidated statements of operations. The resulting foreign currency translation adjustments are recorded as a separate component of accumulated other
comprehensive (loss) income in the consolidated balance sheets.
Derivative Financial Instruments
We employ derivatives to manage certain market risks through the use of foreign exchange forward contracts. We do not use derivatives for trading or speculative
purposes. Our derivatives are designated as a hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability
(cash flow hedge). We hedge a portion of the exchange risk involved in anticipation of highly probable foreign currency-denominated transactions. In anticipation of these
transactions, we enter into foreign exchange contracts to provide currency at a fixed rate. As of March 31, 2020, the Company had no foreign exchange contracts outstanding.
Unrealized gains on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are recorded at fair value as assets, and unrealized losses on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
are recorded at fair value as liabilities. For derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges, the effective portion is reported as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income until reclassified into interest expense in the same period the hedged transaction affects earnings. The gain or loss on the ineffective portion is recognized
as “Other income (expense) – net” in the consolidated statements of income in each period.
Stock-Based Compensation
The Company accounts for employee and director share-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 718“Compensation – Stock
Compensation”. Under ASC 718, share-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date, based on the calculated fair value of the award, and is recognized as an expense
over the employee’s requisite service period (generally the vesting period of the equity grant).
All transactions in which goods or services are the consideration received for the issuance of equity instruments to non-employees are accounted for based on the fair
value of the consideration received or the fair value of the equity instrument issued, whichever is more reliably measurable. The measurement date used to determine the
estimated fair value of the equity instrument issued is the earlier of the date on which the third-party performance is complete or the date on which it is probable that
performance will occur.
Employee and director stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the portion of stock-based payment awards that is
ultimately expected to vest during the period. Given that stock-based compensation expense recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations is based on
awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. The Company’s estimated average forfeiture rates are based on historical forfeiture experience
and estimated future forfeitures.
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Compensation cost for stock awards, which include restricted stock units (“RSUs”), is measured at the fair value on the grant date and recognized as expense, net of
estimated forfeitures, over the related service period. The fair value of stock awards is based on the quoted price of our common stock on the grant date.
The estimated fair value of common stock option awards is calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Black-Scholes model requires subjective
assumptions regarding future stock price volatility and expected time to exercise, along with assumptions about the risk-free interest rate and expected dividends, all of which
affect the estimated fair values of the Company’s common stock option awards. The expected term of options granted is calculated using the simplified method, which is the
weighted average vesting period and the contractual lives of the options.
This calculation is based on a method acceptable in instances where the vesting and exercise terms of options granted meet certain conditions and where limited
historical exercise data is available. The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the common stock of comparable public companies that operate in similar
industries as the Company.
The risk-free rate selected to value any particular grant is based on the U.S. Treasury rate that corresponds to the expected term of the grant effective as of the date of
the grant. The expected dividend assumption is based on the Company’s history and management’s expectation regarding dividend payouts. Compensation expense for common
stock option awards with graded vesting schedules is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the last separately vesting portion of the award,
provided that the accumulated cost recognized as of any date at least equals the value of the vested portion of the award.
If there are any modifications or cancellations of the underlying vested or unvested stock-based awards, the Company may be required to accelerate, increase or cancel
any remaining unearned stock-based compensation expense, or record additional expense for vested stock-based awards. Future stock-based compensation expense and
unearned stock- based compensation may increase to the extent that the Company grants additional common stock options or other stock-based awards.
Business Combinations
We utilize the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations and allocate the purchase price of an acquisition to the various tangible and intangible assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values. We primarily establish fair value using the income approach based upon a discounted cash flow model.
The income approach requires the use of many assumptions and estimates including future revenues and expenses, as well as discount factors and income tax rates. Other
estimates include:
•

Estimated step-ups or write-downs for fixed assets and inventory;

•

Estimated fair values of intangible assets; and

•

Estimated income tax assets and liabilities assumed from the target

While we use our best estimates and assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to accurately value assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
business acquisition date, our estimates and assumptions are inherently uncertain and subject to refinement. As a result, during the purchase price allocation period, which is
generally one year from the business acquisition date, we may record adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, with the corresponding offset to goodwill.
For changes in the valuation of intangible assets between preliminary and final purchase price allocation, the related amortization is adjusted in the period it occurs.
Subsequent to the purchase price allocation period, any adjustment to assets acquired or liabilities assumed is included in operating results in the period in which the adjustment
is determined. Should we issue shares of our common stock in an acquisition, we will be required to estimate the fair value of the shares issued. See Note 3.
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Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in marketing and selling expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Advertising
costs for the three month periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 were $122,092 and $130,922, respectively.
Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenditures are expensed in the period incurred. Research and development expenses primarily consist of salaries, benefits and stockbased compensation, as well as consulting expenses and allocated facilities and other overhead costs. Research and development activities include the development of new
technologies, features and functionality in support of the Company’s products and customer needs.
Income Taxes
The Company utilizes the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the
difference between the consolidated financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected
to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized.
Under ASC Topic 740, the impact of an uncertain income tax position on the income tax return must be recognized at the largest amount that is more-likely-than-not
to be sustained upon audit by the relevant taxing authority. An uncertain income tax position will not be recognized if it has less than a 50% likelihood of being
sustained. Additionally, ASC Topic 740 provides requirements for derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and
transition. The Company’s policy is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.
The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, California and Germany. The Company has elected to treat the tax effect of Global Intangible
Low Tax Income (“GILTI”) as a current-period expense when occurred. The Company does not foresee material changes to its gross liability of uncertain tax positions within
the next twelve months.
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) was signed into law in March 2020. The CARES Act
lifts certain deduction limitations originally imposed by the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (2017 Tax Act). Corporate taxpayers may carryback net operating losses (NOLs)
originating during 2018 through 2020 for up to five years, which was not previously allowed under the 2017 Tax Act. The CARES Act also eliminates the 80% of taxable
income limitations by allowing corporate entities to fully utilize NOL carryforwards to offset taxable income in 2018, 2019 or 2020. Taxpayers may generally deduct interest up
to the sum of 50% of adjusted taxable income plus business interest income (30% limit under the 2017 Tax Act) for tax years beginning January 1, 2019 and 2020. The CARES
Act allows taxpayers with alternative minimum tax credits to claim a refund in 2020 for the entire amount of the credits instead of recovering the credits through refunds over a
period of years, as originally enacted by the 2017 Tax Act.
In addition, the CARES Act raises the corporate charitable deduction limit to 25% of taxable income and makes qualified improvement property generally eligible for
15-year cost-recovery and 100% bonus depreciation. The enactment of the CARES Act resulted in two adjustments to our income tax provision for the three months ended
March 31, 2020, relating to a projected 2018 NOL utilization and tax benefits from NOL carrybacks. We have recorded a discrete benefit of $100,000 in our income tax
provision for the three months ended March 31, 2020 related to the CARES Act.
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Interest Expense
Interest expense consists primarily of interest associated with the Company’s issued debt including the amortization of debt discounts. The Company recognizes the
amortization of debt discounts and the amortization of interest costs using a straight-line method which approximates the effective interest method.
Net Income (Loss) Per Share
Basic net income (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted-average common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net
income (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) by the weighted-average shares and dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period.
Dilutive potential shares consist of dilutive shares issuable and the exercise or vesting of outstanding stock options and warrants, respectively, computed using the treasury
stock method. During a period where a net loss is incurred, dilutive potential shares are excluded from the computation of dilutive net loss per share, as inclusion is antidilutive.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02,Leases (“ASU 2016-02”). Under ASU 2016-02, lessees will be required to recognize the following for all
leases (with the exception of short-term leases) at the commencement date: a lease liability, which is a lessee’s obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease,
measured on a discounted basis; and a right-of-use asset, which is an asset that represents the lessee’s right to use, or control the use of, a specified asset for the lease
term. ASU 2016-02 is effective for the Company for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim periods within fiscal year 2022. Early application is
permitted. Lessees must apply a modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented
in the financial statements. The modified retrospective approach would not require any transition accounting for leases that expired before the earliest comparative period
presented. Lessees may not apply a full retrospective transition approach. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting ASU 2016-02 on its consolidated
financial statements and disclosures. Based on our preliminary analysis, management expects the Company’s assets and liabilities to increase by the present value of the lease
payments disclosed in Note 11.
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-01,Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business(“ASU 2017-01”). The amendments
in this update clarify the definition of a business with the objective of adding guidance to assist entities with evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as
acquisitions or disposals of assets or businesses. ASU 2017-01 is effective for the Company for the year ended December 31, 2019 and interim reporting periods within 2020.
The effect of the adoption of this guidance did not significantly impact the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In September 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-07,Stock-based Compensation: Improvements to Nonemployee Share-based Payment Accounting, which amends
the existing accounting standards for share-based payments to nonemployees. This ASU aligns much of the guidance on measuring and classifying nonemployee awards with
that of awards to employees. Under the new guidance, the measurement of nonemployee equity awards is fixed on the grant date. This ASU becomes effective for the year
ending December 31, 2020 (and interim periods in 2021) and early adoption is permitted but no earlier than an entity’s adoption date of Topic 606. Entities will apply the ASU
by recognizing a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the annual period of adoption. We are currently evaluating the impact that ASU 201807 will have on our condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Recently Implemented Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09,Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASU 2014-09”). ASU 2014-09
supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in FASB Topic 605, Revenue Recognition. ASU 2014-09 implements a five-step process for customer contract revenue
recognition that focuses on transfer of control, as opposed to transfer of risk and rewards. This guidance provides a single, comprehensive accounting model for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. This guidance supersedes most of the existing revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. Under this model, revenue is
recognized at an amount that a company expects to be entitled to upon transferring control of goods or services to a customer, as opposed to when risks and rewards transfer to a
customer. The new guidance also requires additional disclosures about the nature, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flow arising from customer contracts, including
significant judgments and changes in judgments. We adopted this standard beginning January 1, 2019 and used the modified retrospective method of adoption. Under the new
guidance, based on the nature of our contracts, we continued to recognize revenue in a similar manner as with the former guidance. Additionally, we expect the unit of
accounting, that is, the identification of performance obligations, will be consistent with current revenue guidance. Accordingly, the adoption of this standard did not
significantly impact our revenues.
In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15,Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments (“ASU 201615”), which is intended to reduce the existing diversity in practice in how certain cash receipts and cash payments are classified in the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-15 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted, provided that all of the amendments are adopted in the same period. The Company’s
adoption of this guideline did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
NOTE 3 – Long-Lived Intangible Assets
Definite lived intangible assets related to acquisition are as follows, as of March 31, 2020:

Customer lists and relationships
Drawings and Technology
Trade name, Trademarks & other
Non-compete

Expected
Life

Remaining
Months

36 to 60 months
36 months
24 to 36 months
36 months

19 to 41 months
0 months
5 to 19 months
19 months

Gross
Intangible
Assets

$

$

Net
Intangible
Assets

Accumulated
Amortization

2,084,515
760,207
447,274
246,797
3,538,793

$

$

(1,226,805 )
(760,207 )
(255,655 )
(124,460 )
(2,367,126 )

$

$

857,710
191,619
122,337
1,171,667

Definite lived intangibles assets related to acquisitions are as follows, as of December 31, 2019:

Customer lists and relationships
Drawings and Technology
Trade name, Trademarks & other
Non-compete

Expected
Life

Remaining
Months

36 to 60 months
36 months
24 to 36 months
36 months

22 to 44 months
0 months
8 to 22 months
22 months

Gross
Intangible
Assets

$

$

Net
Intangible
Assets

Accumulated
Amortization

2,084,515
760,207
447,274
246,797
3,538,793

$

$

(1,109,681 )
(760,207 )
(217,570 )
(105,143 )
(2,192,601 )

$

$

974,834
229,704
141,654
1,346,192

As of March 31, 2020, amortization expense of the definite lived intangible assets for the years remaining is as follows:
2020

$

2021

509,410

$

2022

556,872

$

2023

63,231

22

$

Total

42,154

$

1,171,667

Amortization expense recognized during the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 was $174,525

and $349,419, respectively.

NOTE 4 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable, net consists of the following:
March 31,
2020

Accounts receivable
Unbilled receivables

$

December 31,
2019

9,122,983
214
9,123,197
(11,518 )
9,111,679

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts
$

$

$

11,655,725
25,432
11,681,157
(14,000 )
11,667,157

Unbilled receivables include amounts associated with percentage of completion and milestone billing accounting, which includes cost and gross profit earned in excess
of billing, not currently billable due to contractual provisions. Recoveries of bad debt expense related to accounts receivable was ($2,405) and ($88) for the three month periods
ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
NOTE 5 – INVENTORIES
Inventories, net consist of the following:
March 31,
2020

Raw materials
Sub-assemblies
Work-in-process
Finished goods

$

December 31,
2019

3,820,575
1,277,061
1,024,973
3,490,385
9,612,994
(628,117 )
8,984,877

Less: reserves for obsolete and slow-moving inventories
$

$

$

2,478,882
1,857,004
493,276
3,087,529
7,916,691
(547,335 )
7,369,356

NOTE 6 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment, net consists of the following:
March 31,
2020

Computers and computer equipment
Furniture and office equipment
Manufacturing equipment and engineering tools
ERP System
Leasehold improvements

$

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization
$

December 31,
2019

659,763
337,901
2,503,576
1,892,420
902,974
6,296,634
(2,744,083 )
3,552,551

$

$

633,546
340,801
2,501,020
1,709,125
892,097
6,076,589
(2,508,025 )
3,568,564

During the three month periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company incurred $221,300 and $115,308, respectively of depreciation and amortization expense
related to property and equipment.
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NOTE 7 – ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses and other liabilities consist of the following:
March 31,
2020

Accrued compensation and related liabilities
Deferred revenue and customer deposits
Warranty reserve
Other accrued expenses

$

$

December 31,
2019

1,798,990
1,410,491
422,782
978,243
4,610,506

$

$

1,621,177
1,260,126
424,011
1,302,118
4,607,432

NOTE 8 – DEBT
Bank Lines of Credit
Bressner Technology GmbH has three revolving lines of credit with German institutions totaling €3,600,000 (US$3,968,492). Borrowing under the lines of credit bear
interest at variable rates of Euribor plus a stated rate. Current rates are between 3.75% and 7.99%. There were no outstanding lines of credit balances as of March 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019.
Foreign Debt Obligations
Bressner Technology GmbH has two term loans outstanding with a total balance outstanding of €763,556 (US$841,713) as follows:
Bressner entered into a note payable in September 2017, in the amount of €400,000 (US$436,272) which bears interest at 2.125% and matured on January 31,
2020. As of March 31, 2020, this note has been paid in full. Quarterly principal payments of €25,000 (US$28,068) were due in January, April, July and November of
2019. The balance outstanding as of December 31, 2019 is €25,000 (US$28,068).
Bressner entered into a note payable in April 2019 in the amount of €500,000 (US$561,350) which bears interest at 2.25% and matures on March 30, 2021 with
monthly payments of principal and interest of €22,232 (US$24,960). The balance outstanding as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 is €263,556 (US$290,534) and
€328,525 (US$368,835), respectively.
Bressner entered into a note payable in June 2019 in the amount of €500,000 (US$551,180) which bears interest at 1.70.% and matures on June 25, 2020 with a balloon
payment of principal and interest. The amount outstanding as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 is €509,544 (US$561,700) and €508,679 (US$571,095),
respectively. Bressner is in the process of having this loan’s maturity date extend one year.
Bressner entered into a note payable in September 2019 in the amount of €300,000 (US$336,810) which bears interest at 1.65.% and matured on March 24, 2020, with
a balloon payment of principal and interest. The outstanding balance was paid in full as of March 31, 2020. At December 31, 2019 the outstanding balance was €301,650
(US$338,663).
Notes Payable
In April 2019, the Company borrowed $350,000 from three individuals for a two year period at an interest rate of 9.5% which requires the Company to make monthly
principal and interest payments of $16,100 per month. These loans are secured by the assets of the Company. In connection with these loans, the Company issued to the
noteholders warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock equal to 10% of the original principal at a price per share equal to $2.15 per share. Accordingly, the
Company issued to the noteholders warrants to purchase 16,276 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $2.15 per share. The relative fair value of each
warrant was $0.90. The relative fair value of warrants was estimated using Black-Scholes with the following weighted-average assumptions: fair value of the Company’s
common stock at issuance of $2.15 per share; five year contractual term; 44.60% volatility; 0.0% dividend rate; and a risk-free interest rate of 2.307%. The total relative fair
value of the warrants issued is $14,037. The balance outstanding as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 is $198,134 and $241,054, respectively.
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Notes Payable – Related Parties
In April 2019, the Company borrowed $1,150,000 from three individuals who serve on the Company’s board of directors for a two year period at an interest rate of
9.5% which requires the Company to make monthly principal and interest payments of $52,900 per month. These loans are secured by the assets of the Company. In
connection with these loans, the Company issued to the noteholders warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock equal to 10% of the original principal at a
price per share equal to $2.15 per share. Accordingly, the Company issued to the noteholders warrants to purchase 53,490 shares of the Company’s common stock at an
exercise price of $2.15 per share. The relative fair value of each warrant was $0.90. The relative fair value of warrants was estimated using Black-Scholes with the following
weighted-average assumptions: fair value of the Company’s common stock at issuance of $2.15 per share; five year contractual term; 42.60% volatility; 0.0% dividend rate; and
a risk-free interest rate of 2.3067%. The relative fair value of warrants issued is $46,121. The balance outstanding as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 is $650,129
and $791,170, respectively.
Debt Discount
The relative fair value of warrants were recorded as debt discount, decreasing notes payable and related-party notes payable and increasing additional paid-in-capital
on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The debt discounts are being amortized to interest expense over the term of the corresponding notes payable using the
straight-line method which approximates the effective interest method.
For the three month periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, total debt discount amortization was $7,520 and $0, respectively, and such amounts are included in
interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Total future payments under notes payable and related-party notes payable as of March 31, 2020 are as follows:
Related
Parties

Period Ending March 31,

2020
2021
Total minimum payments
Current portion of notes payable
Notes payable, net of current portion

$

$

598,482
51,647
650,129
(598,482 )
51,647

Third
Parties

$

$

182,120
16,014
198,134
(182,120 )
16,014

Foreign

$

$

841,713
841,713
(841,713 )
-

Total

$

$

1,622,315
67,661
1,689,976
(1,622,315 )
67,661

Discount

$

$

(30,079 )
(1,253 )
(31,332 )
30,079
(1,253 )

NOTE 9 – STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
The Company’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation filed on December 14, 2017, authorizes the Company to issue 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock
and 50,000,000 shares of common stock.
Common Stock
The voting, dividend and liquidation rights of the holders of the common stock are subject to rights of preferred stockholders, if any, as designated by the Board of
Directors. Common stockholders have voting rights at all meetings of stockholders and are entitled to one vote for each share held subject to certain limitations otherwise
required by law. Dividends may be declared and paid on the common stock as and when determined by the Board of Directors subject to any preferential dividend or other
rights of preferred stockholders. The Company does not anticipate declaring any dividends in the foreseeable future. Upon the dissolution or liquidation of the Company,
common stockholders are entitled to receive all assets of the Company, subject to any preferential or other rights of preferred stockholders.
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On June 26, 2019, the Company filed a prospectus supplement relating to its common stock, par value $0.0001per share, whereby under the prospectus supplement,
the Company may offer and sell common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to $10,000,000 through Noble Capital Markets, Inc., (“Noble”) acting as the
Company’s agent. As such, the Company entered into an Equity Distribution Agreement with Noble dated as of June 26, 2019. In July 2019, the Company sold 1,554,832
shares of common stock through this offering for total gross proceeds of $2,700,714, which resulted in net proceeds to us of $2,488,148, after deducting compensation payable
to Noble of $55,127 and other expenses of $157,439. The Equity Distribution Agreement with Noble was terminated on August 26, 2019.
Exercise of Stock Options and Warrants
During the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company issued 354,914 shares of common stock for proceeds of $57,000 in cash related to the exercise of stock
options and warrants. Of the total shares issued, 279,914 shares of common stock were issued as a cashless exercise of stock options.
During the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company issued 54,098 shares of common stock for proceeds of $14,201 in cash related to the exercise of stock
options and warrants. Of the total shares issued, 17,598 shares of common stock were issued as a cashless exercise of stock.
Preferred Stock
Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time in one or more series, each of these series to have such terms as stated or expressed in resolutions providing for the
issue of such series adopted by the Board of Directors. Since February 1, 2018, there has been no outstanding preferred stock.
Regarding unissued preferred stock, the Board of Directors is authorized to determine or alter any or all of the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions granted to
or imposed upon wholly unissued series of preferred stock, and to fix or alter the number of shares comprising any such series and the designation thereof, or any of them, and
to provide for rights and terms of redemption or conversion of the shares of any such series.
Stock Options
A summary of stock option activity under each of the Company’s stock option plans during the three month period ended March 31, 2020:
Stock Options Outstanding
Weighted
Weighted
Average
Average
Remaining
Exercise
Contractual
Price
Life (in years)

Number of
Shares

Outstanding at January 1, 2020
Granted
Forfeited / Cancelled
Exercised
Outstanding at March 31, 2020
Exercisable at March 31, 2020
Vested and expected to vest at March 31, 2020

1,686,444
20,000
(6,500 )
(686,250 )
1,013,694
866,837
1,009,288
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$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1.32
2.70
2.12
0.79
1.69
1.49
1.69

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

4.84

$

1,416,279

5.08
5.08
5.55

$
$
$

287,953
287,953
287,953

The following table presents details of the assumptions used to calculate the weighted-average grant date fair value of common stock options granted by the Company:
For the Three Months Ended March 31,
2020
2019

Expected term (in years)
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Weighted average grant date fair value per share
Grant date fair value of options vested
Intrinsic value of options exercised

$
$
$

5.87
43.5 - 47.8%
1.41 %
2.70
720,095
463,800

4.65 - 5.87
43.7 - 44.4%
3.00 %
1.09
1,441,371
56,369

$
$
$

As of March 31, 2020, the amount of unearned stock-based compensation estimated to be expensed from 2020 through 2029 related to unvested common stock
options is $158,871, net of estimated forfeitures. The weighted-average period over which the unearned stock-based compensation is expected to be recognized is 1.57 years.
If there are any modifications or cancellations of the underlying unvested awards, the Company may be required to accelerate, increase or cancel any remaining
unearned stock-based compensation expense or calculate and record additional expense. Future stock-based compensation expense and unearned stock-based compensation will
increase to the extent that the Company grants additional common stock options or other stock-based awards.
Restricted Stock Units
Restricted stock units may be granted at the discretion of the compensation committee of the Board of Directors under the Company’s 2017 Equity Incentive Plan that
was adopted on October 10, 2017 (the “2017 Plan”) in connection with the hiring and retention of personnel and are subject to certain conditions. Restricted stock units
generally vest quarterly or semi-annually over a period of one to three years and are typically forfeited if employment is terminated before the restricted stock unit vest. The
compensation expense related to the restricted stock units is calculated as the fair value of the common stock on the grant date and is amortized to expense over the vesting
period and is adjusted for estimated forfeitures.
The Company’s restricted stock unit activity for the three months ended March 31, 2020 is as follows:
Restricted Stock Units
Weighted
Average Grant
Date Fair Value

Number of
Shares

Unvested at January 1, 2020
Granted
Vested
Cancelled
Unvested at March 31, 2020

216,670
80,000
(91,669 )
(12,500 )
192,501

$
$
$
$
$

3.02
2.31
2.94
2.43
2.80

As of March 31, 2020, there was $423,077 of unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested restricted stock units which is expected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of 1.51 years.
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Stock-based compensation expense for the three month periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 was comprised of the following:
For the Three Months Ended March 31,

Stock-based compensation classified as:
General and administrative
Production
Marketing and selling
Research and development

2020

$

$

2019

159,680
17,969
17,292
12,820
207,761

$

$

125,206
14,898
14,393
12,977
167,474

Warrants
The following table summarizes the Company’s warrant activity during the three months ended March 31, 2020:
Weighted
Average
Exercise Price

Number of
Warrants

Warrants outstanding – January 1, 2020
Warrants granted
Warrants exercised
Warrants outstanding – March 31, 2020

630,947
630,947

$
$
$
$

4.16
4.16

NOTE 10 – EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN
The Company has a 401(k) retirement plan. Under the terms of the plan, eligible employees may defer up to 20% of their pre-tax earnings, subject to the Internal
Revenue Service annual contribution limit. Additionally, the Plan allows for discretionary matching contributions by the Company. In the three month periods ended March 31,
2020 and 2019, the matching contributions were 100% of the employee's contribution up to a maximum of 5% of the employee’s annual compensation. During the three month
periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company contributed $116,527 and $91,371, respectively, to the 401(k) Plan.
NOTE 11 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal
From time to time the Company is subject to various legal claims and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, after
consultation with legal counsel, the ultimate disposition of any such matters as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, will not have a materially adverse effect on the
consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Company.
Guarantees and Indemnities
The Company has made certain indemnities, under which it may be required to make payments to an indemnified party, in relation to certain transactions. The
Company indemnifies its directors, officers, employees and agents to the maximum extent permitted under the laws of the State of Delaware. In connection with its facility
lease, the Company has indemnified its lessor for certain claims arising from the use of the facilities. Also, in connection with its Credit Agreement (Note 8), the Company has
agreed to indemnify its lender and others related to the use of the proceeds and other matters. The duration of the indemnities varies, and in many cases is indefinite. These
indemnities do not provide for any limitation of the maximum potential future payments the Company could be obligated to make. Historically, the Company has not been
obligated to make any payments for these obligations and no liabilities have been recorded for these indemnities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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Leases
The Company leases its offices, manufacturing, and warehouse facility in San Diego County under a non-cancelable operating lease. Our corporate headquarters are in
a leased space comprising approximately 29,342 square feet in Escondido, California under a lease that was renewed in August 2018 and expires in August 2024. The
Company also leases a 3,208 square foot facility in Salt Lake City, Utah that houses our Ion software development team. The Company is the lessee of a leased space
comprising approximately 12,000 square feet located in Irvine, California with the lease expiring in March 2021. Bressner Technology GmbH, leases space comprising 8,073
square feet on a month to month basis.
For the three month periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, rent expense was $189,417 and $171,145, respectively.
NOTE 12 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In April 2019, certain members of the Company’s Board of Directors executed definitive agreements to commit funds of up to $4,000,000 as a credit facility. The
Company initially borrowed $1,150,000 from members of the Board of Directors and $350,000 from other shareholders for a two year period at an interest rate of 9.5% which
requires the Company to make monthly principal and interest payment of $69,000 per month. In connection with these loans, the Company issued to these note holders warrants
to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock equal to 10% of the original principal at a price per share equal to $2.15 per share. Accordingly, the Company issued to
these note holders warrants to purchase 69,766 share of the Company’s common stock. The relative fair value of the warrants issued was $60,158. Interest expense on all
related-party notes payable for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 totaled $17,156 and $0, respectively.
The Company has engaged an advertising firm whose president is a former member of the Board of Directors of the Company. Amounts paid to this company are
included in marketing and selling expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, totaled $6,000
and $9,000, respectively.
The Company has appointed certain stockholders to the Board of Directors. Director fees paid by the Company, including stock-based compensation, for the three
months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 totaled $50,505 and $82,836, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.
The Company has engaged a related-party law firm (a principal of that firm owns shares in the Company) to provide legal services. Legal fees paid to this firm are
included in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the three months periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 and
totaled $9,000 and $9,000, respectively.
The Company has engaged an IT network support firm whose owner is an employee of the Company. Fees paid to this firm are included in general and administrative
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 totaled $356 and $660, respectively.
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NOTE 13 – NET LOSS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted net loss per share was calculated as follows for the three month periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019:
For the Three Months Ended March 31,
2020

Basic and diluted net loss per share attributable
to common stockholders:
Numerator:
Net loss attributable to common stockholders
Denominator:
Weighted average common shares outstanding basic
Effect of dilutive securities
Weighted average common shares outstanding diluted
Net loss per common share attributable to
common stockholders:
Basic
Diluted

$

2019

(1,096,032 )

$

(944,729 )

16,332,898
-

14,239,711
-

16,332,898

14,239,711

$
$

(0.07 )
(0.07 )

$
$

(0.07 )
(0.07 )

NOTE 14 – SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
The Company operates in three reportable segments: the design and manufacture of high-performance customized computers and flash arrays, in-flight entertainment
& connectivity and value-added reseller with minimal customization. The Company evaluates financial performance on a company-wide basis.
Segment detail for the three month periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:
For The Three Month Period Ended March 31, 2020
OSS
Revenues

$

Cost of revenues
Gross profit
Gross margin %
Total operating
expenses
(Loss) income from
operations

7,818,278

CDI
$

621,946

$

4,919,413

Total
$

13,359,637

OSS
$

5,230,086

CDI
$

Bressner
299,454

$

4,528,359

(5,621,751 )

(499,158 )

(3,843,041 )

(9,963,950 )

(3,729,173 )

(345,727 )

(3,571,377 )

2,196,527

122,788

1,076,372

3,395,687

1,500,913

(46,273 )

956,982

28.1%

19.7%

3,530,278
$

For The Three Month Period Ended March 31, 2019

Bressner

(1,333,751 )

21.9%

455,931
$

(333,143 )

25.4%

920,632
$

155,740

28.7%

4,906,841
$

(1,511,154 )

-15.5%

3,137,869
$

(1,636,956 )

(359,250 )

2,411,622
24.0%

992,984
$

(36,002 )

10,057,899
(7,646,277 )

21.1%

312,977
$

Total
$

4,443,830
$

(2,032,208 )

Revenue from customers with non-U.S. billing addresses represented approximately 50% and 72% of the Company’s revenue during the three month periods ended
March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
As of March 31, 2020, substantially all the Company’s long-lived assets were located in the United States of America with the exception of assets of $223,000 located
in Germany.
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NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Cost Reduction Plan
On April 5, 2020, the Board of Directors approved workforce reductions as part of the Company’s cost cutting measures implemented in response to the negative
financial and operational impacts resulting from the rapidly evolving novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic. Approximately 19% of the Company’s 115 employees are
impacted through workforce reductions as well as some reduced-hour work weeks.
On April 7, 2020, the Company implemented a cost reduction plan which included the termination of certain employees and elimination of certain costs. Estimated
savings from this effort are expected to be $2.5 to $3.0 million for the year ending 2020.
Bressner – Line of Credit
On April 9, 2020, Bressner converted €500,000 of their line of credit from UniCredit Bank to a one year term loan at 1.9% interest with principal and interest due upon
maturity.
Senior Secured Convertible Promissory Notes
On April 20, 2020, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement providing for the issuance of the Company’s Senior Secured Convertible Promissory
Notes with a principal face amount of up to 6,000,000. The Notes are, subject to certain conditions, convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.0001
per share at an initial conversion price per share of $2.50. Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Notes will be issued with a 10% original issue discount.
On April 24, 2020, the Company consummated the initial closing of the offering (the “Initial Closing”) under the Purchase Agreement and issued a Senior Secured
Convertible Promissory Note with an aggregate of $3,000,000 to an institutional investor (“Initial Note”). The investors purchased the Initial Note for an aggregate purchase
price of $2,700,000, at the Initial Closing after a 10% original issue discount. The Initial Note bears no interest rate (except upon event of default) and, unless earlier converted
or redeemed, will mature on the date that is the twenty-three (23) month anniversary of the last day from the Initial Closing.
On April 28, 2020, the Company received a two year, 1% Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan of $1.5 million.
The Company has evaluated subsequent events after the consolidated balance sheet dated as of March 31, 2020 through the date of filing of this quarterly
report. Based upon the Company’s evaluation, management has determined that, other than as disclosed in the accompanying notes, no subsequent events have occurred that
would require recognition in the accompanying consolidated financial statements or disclosure in the notes thereto.
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ITEM 2 . MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.
You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and operating results together with our financial statements and related notes
included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report. This discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements based upon current beliefs, plans and expectations that involve
risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors,
including those set forth under “Risk Factors” or in other parts of this Quarterly Report.
Overview
OSS designs, manufactures and markets custom high speed computing systems for high performance computing (HPC) applications. These applications require ultrafast processing power and the ability to quickly access and store ever-growing data sets. Systems are built using the latest GPU (graphical processing unit) and solid-state flash
(memory) technologies. We are a niche provider of HPC custom servers, compute accelerators, and flash storage arrays. We deliver this technology to customers through sale
of equipment and software to customers.
Concept Development Inc., (CDI) which was acquired on August 31, 2018, specializes in the design and manufacture of specialized high-performance in-flight
entertainment systems for commercial aircraft. CDI’s capabilities include electrical, mechanical and software design as well as extensive experience in test and certifications
required for airborne systems.
Bressner Technology GmbH, (Bressner) which was acquired on October 31, 2018, provides standard and customized servers, panel PCs, and PCIe expansion systems.
Bressner provides manufacturing, test, sales and marketing services for customers throughout Europe.
Business Developments
On August 31, 2018, the Company acquired Concept Development Inc. (CDI) located in Irvine, California for cash of $646,759, and common stock of
$4,194,673. CDI specializes in the design and manufacture of custom high-performance computing systems for airborne in-flight entertainment systems.
On October 31, 2018, the Company’s wholly-owned German subsidiary, OSS GmbH, acquired 100% of the outstanding stock of Bressner Technology GmbH, a
Germany limited liability company located near Munich, Germany, from its principal owners for cash consideration of €4,725,000 (US$5,374,582) and stock consideration of
106,463 newly-issued restricted shares of the Company’s common stock with an estimated fair value of $228,779.
On December 31, 2018, as a result of changes in the competitive landscape and downward pressure on pricing from large competitors, the members to the joint venture
agreement agreed to begin the dissolution of SkyScale.
In April 2019, certain members of the Company’s Board of Directors executed definitive agreements to commit funds of up to $4,000,000 as a credit facility. The
Company initially borrowed $1,150,000 from members of the Board of Directors and $350,000 from other shareholders for a two year period at an interest rate of 9.5% which
requires the Company to make monthly principal and interest payment of $69,000 per month. In connection with these loans, the Company issued the note holders warrants to
purchase shares of the Company’s common stock equal to 10% of the original principal as a price per share equal to $2.15 per share. Accordingly, the Company issued to the
note holders warrants to purchase 69,766 share of the Company’s common stock. The relative fair value of the warrants issued was $60,158.
On June 26, 2019, the Company filed a prospectus supplement relating to its common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, whereby under the prospectus supplement,
the Company may offer and sell common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to $10,000,000 through Noble acting as the Company’s agent. As such, the Company
entered into an Equity Distribution Agreement with Noble dated as of June 26, 2019. During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company sold 1,554,832 shares of
common stock for total gross proceeds of $2,700,714, which resulted in net proceeds to the Company of $2,488,148, after deducting compensation payable to Noble of $55,127
and other expenses of $157,439.
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On February 15, 2020, Steve Cooper was terminated as President and CEO of One Stop Systems, Inc.,and was replaced by David Raun who has become interim CEO
of the Company.
On April 24, 2020, the Company consummated the initial closing of the offering (the “Initial Closing”) under the Purchase Agreement and issued a Senior Secured
Convertible Promissory Note with an aggregate of $3,000,000 to an institutional investor (“Initial Note”). The investors purchased the Initial Note for an aggregate purchase
price of $2,700,000, at the Initial Closing after a 10% original issue discount. The Initial Note bears no interest rate (except upon event of default) and, unless earlier converted
or redeemed, will mature on the date that is the twenty-three (23) month anniversary of the last day from the Initial Closing.
Our Business Model
OSS designs, manufactures and sells specialized high performance computing (HPC) systems to customers world-wide. We differentiate ourselves from other
suppliers of HPC solutions by utilizing our expertise in custom systems design and PCIe expansion to build systems with a greater quantity of PCIe add-in slots, GPU-based
compute cards and/or flash cards. Our systems offer industry leading capabilities that occupy less physical space and power consumption.
Concept Development, LLC focuses on engineering innovative products and solutions that enhances success for our clients in their design, manufacturing and life
support cycle, with in-flight entertainment and connectivity of their processes enabling efficiencies and cost savings.
Bressner Technology GmbH is a leading provider of industrial IT solutions with long standing international contact to assist in leveraging markets around the world to
our customers benefit and give them early access to innovative new products. By continuing to forge strategic partnerships, we have significantly expanded our range of
services. With this, we offer consistent product portfolio at all integration levels, superior product quality, efficient logistics and excellent support.
Components of Results of Operations
Revenue
On January 1, 2019, the Company adopted the new accounting standard update ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which superseded nearly all
existing revenue recognition guidance under GAAP, to all contracts using the modified retrospective method. For a more detailed description of our revenue recognition
policies see the Company’s consolidated financial statements Note 2 – Significant Accounting Policies.
Cost of revenue
Cost of revenue primarily consists of costs of materials, costs paid to third-party contract manufacturers (which may include the costs of components), and personnel
costs associated with manufacturing and support operations. Personnel costs consist of wages, bonuses, benefits, stock-based compensation expenses. Cost of revenue also
includes freight, allocated overhead costs and inventory write-offs and changes to our inventory and warranty reserves. Allocated overhead costs consist of certain facilities and
utility costs. We expect cost of revenue to increase in absolute dollars, as product revenue increases.
Operating expenses
Our operating expenses consist of general and administrative, sales and marketing and research and development expenses. Salaries and personnel-related costs,
benefits, and stock-based compensation expense, are the most significant components of each category of operating expenses. Operating expenses also include allocated
overhead costs for facilities and utility costs.
General and Administrative - General and administrative expense consists primarily of employee compensation and related expenses for administrative functions
including finance, legal, human resources and fees for third-party professional services, as well as allocated overhead.
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Sales and Marketing - Sales and marketing expense consists primarily of employee compensation and related expenses, sales commissions, marketing programs, travel
and entertainment expenses as well as allocated overhead. Marketing programs consist of advertising, tradeshows, events, corporate communications and brand-building
activities. We expect sales and marketing expenses to increase in absolute dollars as we expand our sales force, increase marketing resources, and further develop sales
channels.
Research and Development - Research and development expense consists primarily of employee compensation and related expenses, prototype expenses, depreciation
associated with assets acquired for research and development, third-party engineering and contractor support costs, as well as allocated overhead. We expect our research and
development expenses to increase in absolute dollars as we continue to invest in new and existing products.
Other Income (Expense), net
Other income consists of income received for activities outside of our core business. This includes interest income from investments and finance charges from
customers. Other expense includes expenses for activities outside of our core business. These expenses consist primarily of loan amortization and interest expense.
Provision for Income Taxes
Provision for income taxes consists of estimated income taxes due to the United States and German governments and to the state tax authorities in jurisdictions in
which we conduct business, as well as the change in our deferred income tax assets and liabilities.
Results of Operations
Results of operations for the three month periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 include the following businesses: Magma, the purchase of the Ion assets from
Western Digital, Concept Development LLC, and Bressner Technology GmbH.
The following tables set forth our results of operations forthe three month periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 respectively, presented in dollars and as a
percentage of net revenue.
For the Three Months Ended March 31,
2020
2019

Revenue
Cost of revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
General and administrative
Marketing and selling
Research and development
Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Other income (expense), net
Total other income (expense), net
Loss before income taxes
Benefit for income taxes
Net loss attributable to common stockholders

$

$
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13,359,637
9,963,950
3,395,687

$

10,057,899
7,646,277
2,411,622

2,514,065
1,189,351
1,203,425
4,906,841
(1,511,154 )

2,043,934
1,137,932
1,261,964
4,443,830
(2,032,208 )

24,637
(68,784 )
(8,029 )
(52,176 )
(1,563,330 )
(467,298 )
(1,096,032 )

3,107
(6,268 )
(11,271 )
(14,432 )
(2,046,640 )
(1,101,911 )
(944,729 )

$

For the Three Months Ended March 31,
2020
2019

Revenue
Cost of revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
General and administrative
Marketing and selling
Research and development
Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Other income (expense), net
Total other income (expense), net
Loss before income taxes
Benefit for income taxes
Net loss attributable to common stockholders

100.0%
74.6%
25.4%

100.0%
76.0%
24.0%

18.8%
8.9%
9.0%
36.7%
-11.3%

20.3%
11.3%
12.5%
44.2%
-20.2%

0.2%
-0.5%
-0.1%
-0.4%
-11.7%
-3.5%
-8.2%

0.0%
-0.1%
-0.1%
-0.1%
-20.3%
-11.0%
-9.4%

Non-GAAP Financial Measures
Adjusted EBITDA
We believe that the use of adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or adjusted EBITDA, is helpful for an investor to assess the
performance of the Company. The Company defines adjusted EBITDA as income (loss) attributable to common stockholders before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization,
acquisition expenses, impairment of long-lived assets, financing costs, fair value adjustments from purchase accounting, stock-based compensation expense and expenses
related to discontinued operations.
Adjusted EBITDA is not a measurement of financial performance under generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, or GAAP. Because of varying
available valuation methodologies, subjective assumptions and the variety of equity instruments that can impact a company’s non-cash operating expenses, we believe that
providing a non-GAAP financial measure that excludes non-cash and non-recurring expenses allows for meaningful comparisons between our core business operating results
and those of other companies, as well as providing us with an important tool for financial and operational decision making and for evaluating our own core business operating
results over different periods of time.
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Our adjusted EBITDA measure may not provide information that is directly comparable to that provided by other companies in our industry, as other companies in our
industry may calculate non-GAAP financial results differently, particularly related to non-recurring, unusual items. Our adjusted EBITDA is not a measurement of financial
performance under GAAP, and should not be considered as an alternative to operating income or as an indication of operating performance or any other measure of
performance derived in accordance with GAAP. We do not consider adjusted EBITDA to be a substitute for, or superior to, the information provided by GAAP financial
results.
For The Three Months Ended March 31,
2020
2019

Net loss attributable to common stockholders

$

(1,096,032 )

$

(944,729 )

Depreciation and amortization

395,825

Amortization of debt discount

7,520

Amortization of deferred gain

(41,479 )

(16,479 )

Stock-based compensation expense

207,761

167,474

464,727
-

Interest expense

68,784

6,268

Interest income

(24,637 )

(3,107 )

Acquisition expense

-

Benefit for income taxes

3,975

(467,298 )

Adjusted EBITDA

$

(949,556 )

(1,101,911 )
$

(1,423,782 )

Adjusted EPS
Adjusted EPS excludes the impact of certain items and, therefore, has not been calculated in accordance with GAAP. We believe that exclusion of certain selected
items assists in providing a more complete understanding of our underlying results and trends and allows for comparability with our peer company index and industry. We use
this measure along with the corresponding GAAP financial measures to manage our business and to evaluate our performance compared to prior periods and the marketplace.
The Company defines Non-GAAP (loss) income attributable to common stockholders as (loss) or income before amortization, stock-based compensation, expenses related to
discontinued operations, impairment of long-lived assets and non-recurring acquisition costs. Adjusted EPS expresses adjusted (loss) income on a per share basis using
weighted average diluted shares outstanding.
Adjusted EPS is a non-GAAP financial measure and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for financial information provided in accordance with
GAAP. These non-GAAP financial measures may not be computed in the same manner as similarly titled measures used by other companies. We expect to continue to incur
expenses similar to the adjusted income from continuing operations and adjusted EPS financial adjustments described above, and investors should not infer from our
presentation of these non-GAAP financial measures that these costs are unusual, infrequent or non-recurring.
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The following table sets-forth Non-GAAP net loss attributable to common stockholders and basic and diluted earnings per share:
For The Three Months Ended March 31,
2020
2019

Net loss attributable to common stockholders
Amortization of intangibles
Stock-based compensation expense
Non-GAAP net loss attributable to common stockholders

$

Non-GAAP net loss per share attributable to common stockholders:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

$

$

(1,096,032 )
174,525
207,761
(713,746 )

$

(944,729 )
349,419
167,474
(427,836 )

$
$

(0.04 )
(0.04 )

$
$

(0.03 )
(0.03 )

16,332,898
16,332,898

14,239,711
14,239,711

Free Cash Flow
Free cash flow, a non-GAAP measure for reporting cash flow, is defined as cash provided by or used in operating activities less capital expenditures for property and
equipment, which includes capitalized software development costs. We believe free cash flow provides investors with an important perspective on cash available for investments
and acquisitions after making capital investments required to support ongoing business operations and long-term value creation. We believe that trends in our free cash flow
can be valuable indicators of our operating performance and liquidity.
Free cash flow is a non-GAAP financial measure and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for financial information provided in accordance with
GAAP. This non-GAAP financial measure may not be computed in the same manner as similarly titled measures used by other companies.
We expect to continue to incur expenditures similar to the free cash flow adjustments described above, and investors should not infer from our presentation of this nonGAAP financial measure that these expenditures reflect all of our obligations which require cash. The following table reconciles cash provided by or used in operating
activities, the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure, to free cash flow:
For the Three Months Ended March 31,
2020
2019

Cash flow:

Cash used in operating activities
Capital expenditures
Free cash flow

(721,773 )
(200,049 )
(921,822 )

$
$

$
$

Change

(200,017 )
(803,243 )
(1,003,260 )

$
$

(521,756 )
603,194
81,438

Comparison of the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019
Revenues, cost of revenues and gross profit:
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2020

Entity:
OSS - (inclusive of SkyScale)
Concept Development Inc.
Bressner Technology GmbH

Revenue
7,818,278
621,946
4,919,413
$ 13,359,637
$

$

$

Cost of
Revenue
(5,621,751 )
(499,158 )
(3,843,041 )
(9,963,950 )

$

$

Gross
Profit
2,196,527
122,788
1,076,372
3,395,687
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For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2019
Gross
Margin
%
28.1%
19.7%
21.9%
25.4%

Revenue
5,230,086
299,454
4,528,359
$ 10,057,899
$

$

$

Cost of
Revenue
(3,729,173 )
(345,727 )
(3,571,377 )
(7,646,277 )

$

$

Gross
Profit
1,500,913
(46,273 )
956,982
2,411,622

Gross
Margin
%
28.7%
-15.5%
21.1%
24.0%

Revenue
For the three month period ended March 31, 2020, total revenue increased $3,301,738 or 32.8%, as compared to the same period in 2019. The increase was primarily
driven by revenue from OSS’ core media and entertainment business and other products which provided an incremental $2,588,191 or 25.7 percentage points of the
increase. Bressner contributed $391,054 or 3.9 percentage points and CDI contributed $322,493 or 3.2 percentage points of the total increase in revenue.
Cost of revenue and gross margin
Cost of revenue increased by $2,317,673 or 30.3%, for the three month period ended March 31, 2020 as compared to the same period in 2019. The increase in cost of
revenue was primarily driven by cost of revenue from OSS’ core business which contributed $1,892,578 or 24.7 percentage points of the increase. Bressner contributed
$271,664 or 3.6 percentage points and CDI contributed $153,431 or 2.0 percentage points of the total increase in cost of revenue.
The overall gross margin percentage increased from 24.0% for the three month period ended March 30, 2019 to 25.4% for the three month period ended March 31,
2020, an increase of 1.4 percentage points. The gross margin for the core OSS business for the three month period ended March 31, 2020 was 28.1%, which was 0.6 percentage
points less in comparison to the prior year period of 28.7%. The majority of the improvement in overall gross margin is attributable to CDI which improved margins from a
negative contribution of (15.5%) to a favorable contribution of 19.7% in the current year. Bressner contributed gross margin at a rate of 21.9% as compared to 21.1% in the
same year ago period.
Operating expenses
General and administrative expense
General and administrative expense increased $470,131 or 23.0 %, for the three month period ended March 31, 2020 as compared to same period in 2019. The increase
in general and administrative expenses is primarily attributable to the accrual for severance benefits attributable to the termination of our former president and chief executive
officer. Overall general and administrative expenses decreased as a percentage of revenue to 18.8% during the three month periods ended March 31, 2020 as compared to
20.3% during the same period in 2019.
Marketing and selling expense
Marketing and selling expense increased $51,418 or 4.5% during the three month periods ended March 31, 2020 as compared to the same period in 2019. The increase
in marketing and selling expenses is primarily attributable to increased personnel costs. Marketing and selling expense decreased as a percentage of revenue to 8.9% during the
three month period ended March 31, 2020 as compared to 11.3% during the same period in 2019.
Research and development expense
Research and development expense decreased by $58,539 or 4.6% during the three month period ended March 31, 2020 as compared to same period in 2019. The
majority of the decrease is attributable to reductions of $110,942 in the activities of the core OSS business attributable to reductions in outside engineering and contract labor
fees, and prototypes, and a reduction at Bressner of $8,982. These reductions were offset by increases at CDI of $61,385 attributable to on-going projects. Overall, total
research and development expense decreased as a percentage of revenue to 9.0% during the three month period ended March 31, 2020 as compared to 12.5% during the same
period in 2019.
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Interest income
Interest income increased $21,530 for the three month period ended March 31, 20209 as compared to same period in 2019. The increase is attributable to increased
finance charges on outstanding accounts receivable balances from our largest customer in the media and entertainment industry.
Interest expense
Interest expense increased $62,516 for the three month period ended March 31, 2020 as compared to same period in 2019. On April 4, 2019, the Company borrowed
$1,500,000 from individuals and related parties at an annual interest rate of 9.5%, additionally, warrants of 10% of the value of the borrowing were also granted. The fair value
of the warrants is amortized over the life of the loans and such costs are included as interest expense. The increase in increase expenses is mainly attributable to this increase in
borrowings.
Other income (expense), net
Other income (expense), for the three month period ended March 31, 2020 resulted in a net decrease in other income and expense of $3,242 and compared to the same
period in 2019.
Provision for income taxes / Income tax benefits
We have recorded an income tax benefit of $467,298 and $1,101,911, respectively, for the three month periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019. This benefit is
attributable to projected annual taxable income for 2020 with a projected tax rate of 28.2%. The projected effective tax rate for the quarter differs from the statutory rate mainly
due to permanent non-deductible goodwill amortization for Bressner Technology GmbH, income from the Global Intangible Low-Taxed Income inclusion, as well as projecting
federal, foreign and state tax liabilities for the year.
In determining the periodic income tax expense, GAAP requires us to forecast our annual effective income tax rate (“AETR”) for the years December 31, 2020 and
2019. Based on management’s projections, the Company expects income tax benefits related to research and development credits and equity compensation benefits to exceed
our pretax earnings in 2020 and 2019.
Liquidity and capital resources
Given our recent operating losses, the Company’s primary sources of liquidity have been provided by (i) the Company’s February 2018 initial public offering (net
proceeds were approximately $16,100,000), (ii) March 2019 notes payable from members of the Board of Directors and others of $1,500,000, (iii) the June 2019 sale of
1,554,832 shares of the Company’s common stock for net cash proceeds of $2,488,148 and (iv) the April 24, 2020 sale of $3,000,000 of Senior Secured Convertible Promissory
Notes issued at a 10% original issue discount.
As of March 31, 2020, the Company’s cash and cash equivalents were $3,038,006 and working capital of $11,938,554. Cash and cash equivalents held by Bressner
totaled $504,103 (USD) at March 31, 2020, and Bressner’s debt covenants do not permit the use of those funds by its parent company. During the three months ended March
31, 2020, the Company experienced an operating loss of $1,511,154 with cash used in operating activities of $721,773. Our largest customer who is engaged in the media and
entertainment industry is having significant financial hardships attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic and as a result has been slow in paying its outstanding accounts
receivables. The Company has formulated a plan whereby extended terms have been made available, and our customer is presently honoring those terms.
The Company’s revenue growth, inclusive of two acquisitions made in 2018, has resulted in growth of the Company as a whole, but has been offset by increased
spending in all areas of operating expenses: general and administrative, marketing and selling, and research and development.
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The recent outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus, or COVID-19, which has been declared by the WorldHealth Organization to be a “public health emergency of
international concern,” has spread across the globe and is impacting worldwide economic activity. A public health pandemic, including COVID-19, poses the risk that we orour
employees, contractors, suppliers, and other partners may be prevented from conducting business activities for an indefinite period of time, including due to shutdowns that may
be requested or mandated by governmental authorities. While it is not possible at this time to estimate the impact that COVID-19 could have on our business, the continued
spread of COVID-19 and the measures taken by the governments of countries affected could disrupt the supply chain and adversely impact our business, financial condition or
results of operations. The COVID-19 outbreak and mitigation measures may also have an adverse impact on globaleconomic conditions which could have an adverse effect on
our business and financial condition. The extent to which the COVID-19 outbreak impacts our results will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot
be predicted, including new information that may emerge concerning the severity of the virus and the actions to contain its impact.
The Company’s operations team is closely monitoring the potential impact to the Company’s business, including its cash flows, supply chains, customers and
employees. Though management has been successfully managing through the current known impacts, if the situation further deteriorates or the outbreak results in further
restriction on both supply and demand factors, our cash flows, financial position and operating results for fiscal year 2020 and beyond will be negatively impacted. Neither the
length of time nor the magnitude of the negative impacts can be presently determined.
Management’s plans with respect to the above is to continue its efforts to restructure the Company with the primary objectives of reducing costs, conserving cash,
strengthening margins, and improving company-wide execution. Specific actions already implemented by management include the deferral of certain executive and Board
compensation payments, a freeze on hiring and minimizing overtime, travel and entertainment, and contractor costs. On April 7, 2020, the Company implemented a cost
reduction plan which included the termination of certain employees and elimination of certain costs. Estimated savings from this effort are expected to be $2.5 to $3.0 million
for the year ending 2020.
While management expects these actions to result in prospective cost reductions, management is also committed to securing debt and/or equity financing to ensure that
liquidity will be sufficient to meet the Company’s cash requirements through at least a period of the next twelve months. Management believes potential sources of liquidity
include at least the following:
▪

In March 2019, the Company received funding commitments in the amount of $4,000,000 from members of the Board of Directors, of which $1,500,000
has been drawn through December 31, 2019. As of March 26, 2020, management expects that $750,000 of such commitments are currently available to the
Company.

▪

In May 2019, the Company filed a Form S-3 prospectus with the Securities and Exchange Commission which became effective on June 19, 2019, and
allows the Company to offer up to $100,000,000 aggregate dollar amount of shares of its common stock, preferred stock, debt securities, warrants to
purchase its common stock, preferred stock or debt securities, subscription rights to purchase its common stock, preferred stock or debt securities and\or
units consisting of some or all of these securities, in any combination, together or separately, in one of more offerings, in amounts, at prices and on the terms
that the Company will determine at the time of the offering and which will be set forth in a prospectus supplement and any related free writing prospectus.
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▪

On April 24, 2020, the Company consummated the initial closing of the offering (the “Initial Closing”) under the Purchase Agreement and issued a Senior
Secured Convertible Promissory Note with an aggregate of $3,000,000 to an institutional investor (“Initial Note”). The investors purchased the Initial Note
for an aggregate purchase price of $2,700,000, at the Initial Closing after a 10% original issue discount. The Initial Note bears no interest rate (except upon
event of default) and, unless earlier converted or redeemed, will mature on the date that is the twenty-three (23) month anniversary of the last day from the
Initial Closing.

▪

On April 28, 2020, the Company received a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan in the amount of $1,500,000.

As a result of management’s cost reduction plans, the Company’s potential sources of liquidity and management’s most recent cash flow forecasts, management
believes that the Company has sufficient liquidity to satisfy its anticipated cash requirements for at least the next twelve months. However, there can be no assurance that
management’s cost reduction efforts will be effective, the forecasted cash flows will be achieved, or that external sources of financing, including the issuance of debt and/or
equity securities, will be available at times and on terms acceptable to the Company, or at all.
The following table summarizes our cash flows for the three month periods ended March 31, 2020 and 2019:
For the Three Months Ended March 31,
2020
2019

Cash flows:

Net cash used in operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in financing activities

$
$
$

(721,773 )
(198,507 )
(1,214,119 )

$
$
$

(200,017 )
(802,193 )
(817,272 )

Operating Activities
During the three month period ended March 31, 2020 we used $721,773 in cash from operating activities, a decrease in cash of $521,756 when compared to the cash
used in operating activities of $200,017 during the same period in 2019. The increase in cash used in operating activities was primarily a result of a reduction in working capital
of $1,145,361, an increase in net loss of $151,303, which was offset by an increase in non-cash adjustments of $774,908. Non-cash adjustments include increases of $977,611
comprised of deferred benefit for income taxes, warranty reserves, depreciation, and debt discount, inventory reserves and stock-based compensation expense. These increases
were offset by $(202,703) in decreases in non-cash adjustments attributable to gain on disposal of property and equipment, provision for bad debt, amortization of deferred gain
and amortization of intangibles.
Working capital decreased overall by $1,145,361. The sources of working capital of $1,535,078 are attributable to reductions in accounts receivable and inventories
for the comparable period. These sources were offset by uses of working capital due to increases in prepaids and other assets, and reduced accounts payable and accrued
expenses and other liabilities of $2,680,439.
Our ability to generate cash from operations in future periods will depend in large part on our profitability, the rate and timing of collections of our accounts receivable,
our inventory turns and our ability to manage other areas of working capital including accounts payable.
Investing Activities
During the three month period ended March 31, 2020, we used cash of $198,507 in investing activities as compared to $802,193 used during the same period in 2019, a
decrease of $603,686. In the prior reporting period, the Company was expanding and remodeling its facility for increased capacity. Such costs were not incurred in the current
period. Additionally, in the prior year, the Company was implementing phase I of its ERP system which included a team of external resources for which the costs were
capitalized. Though phase II is currently in process, the implementation team is significantly smaller and as a result we are not incurring comparable costs. We do not
anticipate any other significant purchases of equipment beyond that which is anticipated for use in the normal course of our core business activity.
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Financing Activities
During the three month period ended March 31, 2020, we used $1,214,119 in financing activities as compared to the cash used of $817,272 during the same period in
2019. During the three month period ended March 31, 2020, in addition to payments on term loans and outstanding lines of credit, the Company received proceeds of $57,000
through the exercise of stock options which was offset by a payment for taxes of $656,845 that was paid on behalf of those that exercised options and RSU’s on a net cashless
basis.
For the three month period ended March 31, 2019, the Company received proceeds from the exercise of options of $14,201and paid net $831,473 on the outstanding
debt obligations.
Contractual obligations and commitments
The following table sets forth our non-cancellable contractual obligations as of March 31, 2020.
Contractual Obligations:

Notes payable
Operating leases
Total

Total

$
$

1,689,977
1,740,468
3,430,445

Less than 1 year

$
$

1,622,316
635,693
2,258,009

1-3 years

$
$

67,661
972,442
1,040,103

3-5 years

More than 5 Years

$
$

132,333
132,333

$

-

We have made certain indemnities, under which the Company may be required to make payments to an indemnified party, in relation to certain transactions. We
indemnify our directors, officers, employees and agents to the maximum extent permitted under the laws of the State of Delaware. In connection with our facilities leases, we
indemnify our lessors for certain claims arising from the use of our facilities. The duration of the indemnities varies, and in many cases is indefinite. These indemnities do not
provide for any limitation of the maximum potential future payments we could be obligated to make. Historically, we have not been obligated to make any payments for these
obligations and no liabilities have been recorded for these indemnities.
Off balance sheet arrangements
Other than lease commitments incurred in the normal course of business and certain indemnification provisions, we do not have any off-balance sheet financing
arrangements or liabilities, guarantee contracts, retained or contingent interests in transferred assets, or any obligation arising out of a material variable interest in an
unconsolidated entity.
We do not have any majority-owned subsidiaries that are not consolidated in the financial statements. Additionally, we do not have an interest in, or relationships with,
any special purpose entities.
Stockholder transactions
In April 2019, certain members of the Company’s Board of Directors executed definitive agreements to commit funds of up to $4,000,000 as a credit facility. The
Company initially borrowed $1,150,000 from members of the Board of Directors and $350,000 from other shareholders for a two year period at an interest rate of 9.5% which
requires the Company to make monthly principal and interest payment of $69,000 per month. In connection with these loans, the Company issued the note holders warrants to
purchase shares of the Company’s common stock equal to 10% of the original principal at a price per share equal to $2.15 per share. Accordingly, the Company issued to the
note holders warrants to purchase 69,766 shares of the Company’s common stock. The relative fair value of the warrants issued was $60,158.
Critical accounting policies and estimates
Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The preparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses, and related disclosures. We evaluate our
estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis. Our estimates are based on historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Our actual results could differ from these estimates. The critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments that we believe have the most significant
impact on our consolidated financial statements are described below.
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Revenue Recognition
On January 1, 2019, the Company adopted the new accounting standard update ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which superseded nearly all
existing revenue recognition guidance under GAAP, to all contracts using the modified retrospective method. The comparative information has not been restated and continues
to be reported under the accounting standards in effect for those periods.
The Company’s performance obligations are satisfied over time as work is performed or at a point in time. The majority of the Company’s revenue is recognized at a
point in time when products ship and control is transferred to the customer. The Company determines revenue recognition through the following steps: (1) identification of the
contract with a customer; (2) identification of the performance obligations in the contract; (3) determination of the transaction price; (4) allocation of the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract; and (5) recognition of revenue when, or as, a performance obligation is satisfied.
The Company’s contracts are executed through a combination of written agreements along with purchase orders with all customers including certain general terms and
conditions. Generally, purchase orders entail products, quantities and prices, which define the performance obligations of each party and are approved and accepted by the
Company. The Company’s contracts with customers do not include extended payment terms. Payment terms vary by contract type and type of customer and generally range
from 30 to 60 days from invoice. Additionally, taxes assessed by a governmental authority that are both imposed on and concurrent with a specific revenue-producing
transaction, that are collected by the Company from a customer and deposited with the relevant government authority, are excluded from revenue.
The transaction price is determined based on the consideration to which the Company will be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to the customer
adjusted for estimated variable consideration, if any. Variable consideration may include discounts, rights of return, refunds, and other similar obligations. The Company
allocates the transaction price to each distinct product and service based on its relative standalone selling price. The standalone selling price for products primarily involves the
cost to produce the deliverable plus the anticipated margin and for services is estimated based on the Company’s approved list price.
In the normal course of business, the Company does not accept product returns unless the items are defective as manufactured. The Company establishes provisions for
estimated returns and warranties. In addition, the Company does not typically provide customers with the right to a refund and does not transact for noncash consideration.
Customer agreements include one vendor managed inventory program. The Company recognizes revenue under this arrangement when all of the following criteria are
met: (i) the goods have been identified separately as belonging to the customer; (ii) the goods are ready for physical shipment to the customer; (iii) the Company does not have
the ability to direct the goods to another customer; and (iv) the arrangement was requested by the customer and the customer has sufficiently explained a substantial business
purpose for the arrangement. Management also considers whether the customer's custodial risks are insured and whether modifications to the Company's normal billing and
credit terms were required.
Revenues on certain fixed-price contracts where we provide engineering services, prototypes and completed products are recognized based upon percentage of
completion or based upon milestones delivered that are provided during the period and compared to milestone goals to be provided over the entire contract. These services
require that we perform significant, extensive and complex design, development, modification or implementation of our customers’ systems. Performance will often extend over
long periods of time, and our right to receive future payment depends on our future performance in accordance with the agreement.
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The percentage-of-completion methodology involves recognizing probable and reasonably estimable revenue using the percentage of services completed, on a current
cumulative cost to estimated total cost basis, using a reasonably consistent profit margin over the performance period. Due to the long-term nature of these projects, developing
the estimates of costs often requires significant judgment. Factors that must be considered in estimating the progress of work completed and ultimate cost of the projects
include, but are not limited to, the availability of labor and labor productivity, the nature and complexity of the work to be performed and the impact of delayed performance. If
changes occur in delivery, productivity or other factors used in developing the estimates of costs or revenues, we revise our cost and revenue estimates, which may result in
increases or decreases in revenues and costs, and such revisions are reflected in earnings in the period in which the revision becomes known.
On certain contracts with several of the Company’s significant customers, the Company receives payments in advance of manufacturing. Advanced payments are
recorded as deferred revenue until the revenue recognition criteria described above has been met.
Related billings that are in excess of revenue earned are deferred and recorded as a liability on the consolidated balance sheet until the related services are provided.
Stock-Based Compensation
We measure and recognize compensation expense for all stock-based awards granted to our employees and other service providers, including stock options granted
under the 2017 Plan and 2015 Stock Option Plan that was approved in December 2015 (the “2015 Plan”), based on the estimated fair value of the award. We use the BlackScholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of stock option awards granted under the 2017 Plan and 2015 Plan. We recognize the fair value of stock options granted
under the 2017 Plan and 2015 Plan as stock-based compensation on a straight line basis over the requisite service period. We record expense net of anticipated forfeitures and
adjust the annual expense based upon actual experience.
Compensation cost for stock awards, which include restricted stock units (“RSUs”) is measured at the fair value on the grant date and recognized as expense, net of
estimated forfeitures, over the related service period. The fair value of stock awards is based on the quoted price of our common stock on the grant date less the present value of
expected dividends not received during the vesting period.
Our use of the Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the fair value of the underlying common stock,
expected term of the option, expected volatility of the price of our common stock, risk-free interest rates and the expected dividend yield of our common stock. The assumptions
used in our option pricing model represent management’s best estimates. These estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management’s judgment. If
factors change and different assumptions are used, our stock-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future.
These assumptions and estimates are as follows:
•

Fair Value of Common Stock. Since the completion of our IPO, we use the closing quoted price of our common stock on the date of grant.

•

Expected Term. The expected term represents the period that our stock-based awards are expected to be outstanding. The expected term assumptions were
determined based on the vesting terms and contractual lives of the options, using the simplified method.

•

Expected Volatility. Since we do not have sufficient trading history of our common stock, the expected volatility was determined based on the historical
stock volatilities of comparable companies. Comparable companies consist of public companies in our industry that is similar in size, stage of life cycle and
financial leverage. We intend to continue to apply this process using the same or similar public companies until a sufficient amount of historical information
regarding the volatility of our own share price becomes available, or unless circumstances change such that the identified companies are no longer similar to
us, in which case, more suitable companies whose share prices are publicly available would be used in the calculation.
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•

Risk-Free Interest Rate. The risk-free interest rate is based on the implied yield available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with remaining terms similar
to the expected term on the options.

•

Dividend Rate. We have never declared or paid any cash dividends and do not plan to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future, and, therefore, use an
expected dividend yield of zero.

We will continue to use judgment in evaluating the assumptions related to our stock-based compensation on a prospective basis. As we continue to accumulate
additional data related to our common stock, we may refine our estimation process, which could materially impact our future stock-based compensation expense.
Inventory Valuation
We value our inventory at the lower of cost or its estimated net realizable value. We use the average cost method for purposes of determining cost, which
approximates the first-in, first-out method. We write down inventory for excess and obsolescence based upon a review of historical usage and assumptions about future demand,
product mix and possible alternative uses. Actual demand, product mix and alternative usage may be lower than those that we project and this difference could have a material
adverse effect on our gross margin if inventory write-downs beyond those initially recorded become necessary. Alternatively, if actual demand, product mix and alternative
usage are more favorable than those we estimated at the time of such a write-down, our gross margin could be favorably impacted in future periods.
Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Long-lived Assets
We evaluate our goodwill, intangible and long-lived assets for impairment when events or circumstances arise that indicate our goodwill, intangible and long–assets
may be impaired. Indicators of impairment include, but are not limited to, a significant deterioration in overall economic conditions, a decline in our market capitalization, the
loss of significant business, significant decreases in funding for our contracts, or other significant adverse changes in industry or market conditions. Regardless, goodwill is
tested for potential impairment at least annually.
Income Taxes
The determination of income tax expense requires us to make certain estimates and judgments concerning the calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, as well
as the deductions and credits that are available to reduce taxable income. We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that
have been included in our consolidated financial statements. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial
statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse.
In evaluating our ability to recover deferred tax assets, we consider all available positive and negative evidence, including our past operating results, our forecast of
future earnings, future taxable income, and tax planning strategies. The assumptions utilized in determining future taxable income require significant judgment. We record a
valuation allowance against deferred tax assets if, based upon the available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. If it
becomes more likely than not that a tax asset will be used for which a reserve has been provided, we reverse the related valuation allowance. If our actual future taxable income
by tax jurisdiction differs from estimates, additional allowances or reversals of reserves may be necessary.
We use a two-step approach to recognize and measure uncertain tax positions. First, the tax position must be evaluated to determine the likelihood that it will be
sustained upon external examination. If the tax position is deemed more-likely-than-not to be sustained, the tax position is then assessed to determine the amount of benefit to
recognize in the financial statements. The amount of the benefit that may be recognized is the largest amount that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon
ultimate settlement. We reevaluate our uncertain tax positions on a quarterly basis and any changes to these positions as a result of tax audits, tax laws or other facts and
circumstances could result in additional charges to operations.
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Business Combinations
We utilize the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations and allocate the purchase price of an acquisition to the various tangible and intangible assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values. We primarily establish fair value using the income approach based upon a discounted cash flow model.
The income approach requires the use of many assumptions and estimates including future revenues and expenses, as well as discount factors and income tax rates. Other
estimates include:
•

Estimated step-ups or write-downs for fixed assets and inventory;

•

Estimated fair values of intangible assets; and

•

Estimated income tax assets and liabilities assumed from the target

While we use our best estimates and assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to accurately value assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
business acquisition date, our estimates and assumptions are inherently uncertain and subject to refinement. As a result, during the purchase price allocation period, which is
generally no longer than one year from the business acquisition date, we record adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, with the corresponding offset to
goodwill.
For changes in the valuation of intangible assets between preliminary and final purchase price allocation, the related amortization is adjusted in the period it occurs.
Subsequent to the purchase price allocation period any adjustment to assets acquired or liabilities assumed is included in operating results in the period in which the adjustment
is determined. Should we issue shares of our common stock in an acquisition, we will be required to estimate the fair value of the shares issued.
Recently implemented accounting pronouncements
Per the Company’s consolidated financial statements Note 2 – Significant Accounting Policies, we have implemented a number of changes, as required by FASB. See
Note 2 for further details.
Recent accounting pronouncements
Per the Company’s consolidated financial statements Note 2 – Significant Accounting Policies, we may be implementing a number of changes, as required by
FASB. See Note 2 for further details.
Interest rate risk
Our exposure to interest rate risk is primarily associated with borrowing on revolving lines of credit denominated in both U.S. dollars and Euros. We are exposed to
the impact of interest rate changes primarily through our borrowing activities for our variable rate borrowings.
Concentration of credit risk
Financial instruments that potentially expose us to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash, cash equivalents and accounts receivable. We place our cash
and cash equivalents with financial institutions with high credit quality. At March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, we had $2,658,777 and $5,185,321, respectively, of cash
and cash equivalents on deposit or invested with our financial and lending institutions.
We provide credit to our customers in the normal course of business. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition and limit the
amount of credit extended when deemed necessary.
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Foreign currency risk
We operate primarily in the United States. Foreign sales of products and services are primarily denominated in U.S. dollars. We also conduct business outside the
United States through our foreign subsidiary in Germany, where business is largely transacted in non-U.S. dollar currencies particularly the Euro, which is subject to
fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Accordingly, we are subject to exposure from changes in the exchange rates of local currencies. Foreign
currency transaction gains and losses are recorded in other income (expense), net in the consolidated statements of operations.
OSS GmbH operates as an extension of OSS’ domestic operations and acquired Bressner Technology GmbH in October 2018. The functional currency of OSS GmbH
is the Euro. Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are remeasured to the functional currency at the average exchange rate in effect during
the period. At the end of each reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities are remeasured at historical exchange rates. Consequently, changes in the exchange rates of the currencies may impact the translation of the foreign subsidiaries’
statements of operations into U.S. dollars, which may in turn affect our consolidated statement of operations. The resulting foreign currency translation adjustments are recorded
as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Derivative Financial Instruments
We employ derivatives on a periodic basis to manage certain market risks through the use of foreign exchange forward contracts. We do not use derivatives for trading
or speculative purposes. Our derivatives are designated as a hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized
asset or liability (cash flow hedge). We hedge a portion of the exchange risk involved in anticipation of highly probable foreign currency-denominated transactions. In
anticipation of these transactions, we may enter into foreign exchange contracts to provide currency at a fixed rate.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Not Applicable.
Item 4. Controls and Procedures
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our periodic and current reports that we file
with the SEC is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. In reaching a reasonable level of assurance, management
necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. In addition, the design of any system of controls
also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals
under all potential future conditions; over time, control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may
deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not be detected.
Limitation on Effectiveness of Controls
Any control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance as to the tested objectives. The design of any control system is
based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all
potential future conditions, regardless of how remote. The inherent limitations in any control system include the realities that judgments related to decision-making can be
faulty, and that reduced effectiveness in controls can occur because of simple errors or mistakes. Due to the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements
due to error may occur and may not be detected.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Management is required to evaluate our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Act”). Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our reports
filed under the Exchange Act, such as this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities
and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that such
information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. Based on our management’s evaluation (with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer), our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange
Act) were effective at a reasonable assurance level as of the end of the period covered by this report.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended March 31, 2020, which were identified in connection with
management’s evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act, that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially
affect our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings.
We are subject to litigation, claims, investigations and audits arising from time to time in the ordinary course of our business. However, at this time, we are not aware
of any pending, threatened, or unasserted claims.
Item 1A. Risk Factors.
Please carefully consider the information set forth in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the risk factors discussed in Part I, Item I A. of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019, which could materially affect our business, financial condition or future results. In evaluating our business, you should
carefully consider the risk factors discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, as updated by our subsequent filings under the Exchange Act. The occurrence of any of the
risks discussed in such filings, or other events that we do not currently anticipate or that we currently deem immaterial, could harm our business, prospects, financial condition
and results of operations. In that case, the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment.
Our business may be subject to risks arising from pandemic, epidemic, or an outbreak of diseases, such as the recent outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus, COVID-19.
The recent outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus, or COVID-19, which has been declared by the World Health Organization to be a “public health emergency of
international concern,” has spread across the globe and is impacting worldwide economic activity. A public health pandemic, including COVID-19, poses the risk that we or our
employees, contractors, suppliers, and other partners may be prevented from conducting business activities for an indefinite period of time, including due to shutdowns that may
be requested or mandated by governmental authorities. While it is not possible at this time to estimate the impact that COVID-19 could have on our business, the continued
spread of COVID-19 and the measures taken by the governments of countries affected could disrupt the supply chain and adversely impact our business, financial condition or
results of operations. The COVID-19 outbreak and mitigation measures may also have an adverse impact on global economic conditions which could have an adverse effect on
our business and financial condition. The extent to which the COVID-19 outbreak impacts our results will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot
be predicted, including new information that may emerge concerning the severity of the virus and the actions to contain its impact.
We may not be able to obtain the supplies and materials that we need from our suppliers due to COVID-19.
As a result of the recent outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus, COVID-19, there have been numerous factory closures. While many factories were closed for a
few days because of the Chinese New Year holiday, the Chinese government ordered that businesses in various areas extend the Chinese New Year holiday due to the
Coronavirus outbreak and it is possible that the Chinese government will announce additional closures in the future.
Some of our suppliers in China as well as other locations throughout the world have similarly been affected and experienced closures and risks of labor shortages. If
our suppliers experience additional closures in the future, we may have difficulty sourcing materials necessary to fulfill production requirements and meet scheduled shipments,
which will negatively affect our revenues. Even if we are able to find alternate sources for such materials, they may cost more, which will affect our profitability. If our
suppliers in China and other Asian markets experience additional closures in the future and are not able to accept orders or if they delay or cancel such orders, our revenues will
be negatively affected. At this point in time, there is significant uncertainty relating to the potential effect of the coronavirus on our business. Infections may become more
widespread and there might be additional factory closures in the future, all of which will have a negative impact on our business, financial condition and operating results.
Additionally, as a result of significant changes in the worldwide capital markets and general business climate, the impact on the future demand for our products is
unknown at this time.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.
None.
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.
None.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not Applicable.
Item 5. Other Information.
None.
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Item 6. Exhibits.
Exhibit
Number

Description

31.1**

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 **.

31.2**

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 **.

32.1**

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 **.

32.2**

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 **.

101.INS*

XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

*

Filed herewith.

**

These certifications are being furnished solely to accompany this quarterly report pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, and are not being filed for purposes of Section
18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and are not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the registrant, whether made before or after the
date hereof, regardless of any general incorporation language in such filing.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto
duly authorized.
Company Name
Date: May 14, 2020

By:

/s/ David Raun
David Raun
Interim Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: May 14, 2020

By:

/s/ John W. Morrison Jr.
John W. Morrison Jr.
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, David Raun, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of One Stop Systems, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

[paragraph omitted in accordance with Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)];

(c)

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: May 14, 2020

By:

/s/ David Raun
David Raun
Interim Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, John W. Morrison Jr., certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of One Stop Systems, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

[paragraph omitted in accordance with Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)];

(c)

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: May 14, 2020

By:

/s/ John W. Morrison Jr.
John W. Morrison Jr.
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of One Stop Systems, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2020, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, David Raun, Interim Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

Date: May 14, 2020

By: /s/ David Raun
David Raun
Interim Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of One Stop Systems, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2020 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, John W. Morrison Jr., Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

Date: May 14, 2020

By: /s/ John W. Morrison Jr.
John W. Morrison Jr.
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)

